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1. About this report
This is the 17th Annual Report for Aurora Energy Pty Ltd and encompasses the period between 1 July 2014
and 30 June 2015.
It includes the activities of Aurora Energy which from 1 July 2014 comprised an electricity and gas retailer. This report and past
reports can be viewed at www.auroraenergy.com.au.

2. Highlights
On 1 July 2014 Aurora Energy commenced operations as a stand-alone energy retailer following the
disaggregation of its former distribution network business which merged with Transend to form
TasNetworks.  In 2014-15, Aurora Energy:
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•

Embedded a new customer focussed and low cost
operating model and prepared for competition in
the newly contestable residential and small business
customer segments;

•

Commenced development of a new Customer
Excellence Framework and introduced a Voice of
Customer program to drive improvements consistent
with customer feedback;

•

Extended the operating hours of our customer
service centres, acknowledging the competing
demands that our customers face;

•

Introduced a new vulnerable customer support
program, known as the “Your Energy Support”
(YES) program, aimed at assisting Tasmanians
experiencing financial difficulties to manage their
energy expenses;

•

Achieved 100 per cent of its 2014-15 performance
targets;

•

Established a dedicated small business sales and
service team to make it easier for small business
customers to engage with Aurora Energy;

•

Entered into new community partnerships and
sponsorship initiatives to support Tasmanian notfor-profit community organisations, targeting those
activities which make a practical difference to the
lives of Tasmanians;

•

Reshaped its health and safety management system
to ensure it was fit-for-purpose for the new business
and avoided any employee medically treated injuries
or lost time injuries for the year; and

•

Achieved profit before tax of $45.0M and delivered
$34.8M in returns to its Shareholders.

3 . Strategic performance (KPIs)
Strategic Theme
Provide consistent,
proactive, strong
customer service
linked to customer
value

Key Performance Indicator

Performance Measure

Grade of Service

Percentage of calls answered
within 30 seconds

Complaint Frequency Rate

Number of complaints per 100
residential customer complaints

Customer Retention

Total number of customers

14-15 Target

14-15 Outcome

70%

72%

0.5-1.0

0.83

>238,000

276,145

Give due consideration Annual profitability
to meeting
stakeholder and
Tasmanian community
Returns to Government
expectations

Profit before tax

$11.1M

$45.0M

Returns to Government (cash)

$23.3M

$34.8M

Application of efficient Improvement in nonsystems, processes and compliance events related to
practices
NECF

% reduction in type 1 NECF
breaches compared to prior year
result

50%

83.3%

Within the CTS
Allowance

Within the CTS
Allowance

Initiatives underpinning the
Retail Transformation Program
core business capabilities are
delivery
delivered on time and on budget

95%

98%

Rolling 12 month medically
treated injury frequency rate
(MTIFR)

Number of medical injuries
treated per 1,000,000 hours
worked

2.8

0

Employee initiated turnover

Employee initiated turnover (FTE)
as a percentage of total FTE

5%

2.29%

Regulated Cost to Serve (CTS)
per customer

Delivered by
committed, capable,
valued and passionate
people who care about
what they do and the
important role they
play in the community.

Cost to Serve within the
regulated Cost to Serve
allowance
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4. Introducing Aurora Energy
Aurora Energy is a Tasmanian-owned and operated
energy retailer with a core focus on its customers
and generating value for its Shareholders and the
Tasmanian community.

Aurora Energy remains a significant employer in Tasmania,
with a workforce that understands the specific issues faced by
Tasmanian customers. This is evident in our retailing practices,
approach to our customers and community engagement. We
understand what is important to Tasmanians.

On 1 July 2014 Aurora Energy commenced operations as a
stand-alone energy retailer following the disaggregation of
its former distribution network business which merged with
Transend to form TasNetworks.

Aurora Energy’s key functions includes its customer service
centres, credit, collections, sales, marketing, billing and
market services and business support functions. Our people
are focussed on delivering retail services to over 276,000
customers.

Prior to this date, Aurora Energy undertook electricity
distribution, electricity and gas retail activities as well as
providing telecommunications services. In undertaking
these activities, Aurora Energy operated out of 14 locations
throughout Tasmania with a wholesale energy trading office
in Melbourne. Aurora Energy has now consolidated its
operations to two locations in Tasmania, with its main office
in Hobart and a second customer service centre located in
Launceston.

5

Aurora Energy’s change in business scope to a standalone
retail business also resulted in significant variation to its
workforce profile. Aurora Energy’s workforce now comprises
171 employees of which 51.5 per cent is female, with the
Board comprising 75 per cent females. The average age and
tenure of our workforce is 39 and four years respectively.

On 1 July 2014 Aurora Energy commenced operations as a stand-alone energy retail company.

Aurora Energy at a glance

276,000

The number of customers that Aurora Energy services
in Tasmania, including residential, small and large
business customers.
During 2014-15 our complaint
frequency rate was 0.83 per
100 residential customers.

39

339,676

Wholly Tasmanian owned
and operated, Aurora Energy
now operates from two
locations within the State, in
Hobart and Launceston.

Aurora Energy’s workforce
comprises 171 employees
of which 51.5 per cent is
female. The average age of
the Aurora Energy workforce
is 39 years.

In 2014-15, Aurora Energy
answered 339,676 calls, 72%
of which were answered
within 30 seconds.

OPEN

Aurora Energy’s key functions
include its customer service
centres, customer operations,
billing and market services and
business support functions.

In March 2015, we extended
the operating hours of our
customer service centres to
8am - 6pm.
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5 . C h a i r m a n ’s r e v i e w
of organisations. I believe we have an important role to play
in this regard as a Tasmanian company with a significant reach
throughout the State.
The commencement of full retail contestability in Tasmania
has seen competition in the small business sector for the first
time. Operating in a competitive environment has demanded
that Aurora Energy be well prepared to be responsive to the
changing market. The development of products for small
business customers, together with improved high standards of
customer service, has resulted in Aurora Energy being able to
effectively compete within this segment.

“

Aurora Energy directed its core focus to
providing consistent, proactive, strong customer
service linked to customer value. This approach
assisted in achieving strong operational and
financial performance, performance which
exceeded expectation.

On behalf of the Board of Aurora Energy it is my
pleasure to present Aurora Energy’s 2014-15
Annual Report.
The past year has been a period of change for the Tasmanian
electricity supply industry with all customers, including
small business and households, participating in a fully
contestable market from 1 July 2014. This time also marked
the commencement of Aurora Energy as a stand-alone energy
retailer following the disaggregation of its former distribution
network business.
It was against this backdrop that Aurora Energy directed its
core focus to providing consistent, proactive, strong customer
service linked to customer value. This approach assisted
in achieving strong operating and financial performance,
performance which exceeded expectation.
I am also pleased that Aurora Energy has been able to
maintain a valued contribution to the Tasmanian community
through the establishment of partnerships with a broad range
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”

Financial performance and strength
Aurora Energy recorded a profit after tax of $31.5M for
the 2014-15 financial year. Aurora Energy made significant
progress in embedding a low cost operating model since
commencing as a stand-alone retailer on 1 July 2014 with this
approach assisting in achieving strong financial performance
for the year. The low-cost focus will remain over the coming
years, with Aurora Energy setting a target of a further 10 per
cent reduction in underlying operating costs over the next four
years.
The consistently favourable earnings throughout 2014-15 have
optimised returns to Shareholders resulting in a recommendation
that a dividend of $27.6M to be returned.
Subsequent to the transfer of substantial net assets to
TasNetworks, Aurora Energy recorded a robust financial
position with net assets of $83.3M, an increase of $43.7M over
the course of the year.

Challenges and opportunities
Maintaining business performance will be influenced by
a number of key external challenges over the coming
year in addition to witnessing an increasingly competitive
environment.
Demand for electricity in Tasmania has again declined over the
past 12 months, with this decline driven by a fall in residential
and commercial consumption. Customers are exhibiting
more energy efficient behaviour together with the continued
uptake of rooftop solar generation. While forecasts point to a
slight increase in operational consumption in the short term
(driven by increased industrial consumption), medium to long
term forecasts indicate a slight decrease, to flat operational
consumption.
It is likely that Australian Government reforms to the National
Electricity Market such as the Power of Choice initiatives,
aimed at providing consumers with greater control over the
way in which they use electricity, will also impact the business
both through mandated changes to operations and systems
and through changes to customer behaviour.

On behalf of the Board I would like to acknowledge the Chief
Executive Officer and Managing Director Rebecca Kardos, for
her leadership over the past 12 months. The direction she has
provided has been critical to the success of the first year of
operations and I have every faith the business is well placed
to succeed in the future, building on the foundations that are
now in place.
This success will be measured by the value placed on Aurora
Energy by its customers, our ability to provide sustainable
returns and, ultimately, the value we generate for our
Shareholders and the Tasmanian community to realise in the
future.

Geoff Willis
Chairman

Through our corporate planning process we believe we are
well-positioned to respond to these challenges and to continue
to build on the foundation laid over the past 12 months.

Thank you
It’s been an overwhelmingly positive first year for Aurora
Energy, with the transition from a combined distribution
and retail business to a stand-alone retailer requiring
enormous effort. To witness the position the business is in
now is a testament to all staff who have applied themselves
with professionalism and commitment to Aurora Energy’s
customers and values.
Thank you to all those employees who retired or left Aurora
Energy over the past 12 months, and to all new starters,
welcome to the business in what is an exciting time.
I would also like to acknowledge my fellow board members
for their invaluable contributions during the year. Thank
you in particular to Directors Michael Vertigan and Martin
Wallace who left the Board in November 2014. Both Michael
and Martin oversaw the significant transformation of Aurora
Energy and their assistance and experience during this time
was greatly appreciated.
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6 . C EO ’s r e p o r t
Improved customer service was driven by the commencement
of a new Customer Excellence Framework and the introduction
of a Voice of Customer program, the mechanism by which
we regularly listen to how the business is performing from
the perspective of its customers and identify improvement
opportunities. A primary focus was given to vulnerable
customers with Aurora Energy introducing a new vulnerable
customer program, the “Your Energy Support” (YES) program,
aimed at assisting Tasmanians experiencing financial
difficulties to manage their energy expenses. The success of
this program will see the investment of a further $2M over two
years to expand the reach of YES to support more Tasmanians
with energy affordability.

“

Aurora Energy entered into new community
partnerships and sponsorship initiatives to support
Tasmanian not-for-profit community organisations,
targeting those activities which make a practical
difference to the lives of Tasmanians.

Aurora Energy’s first year as a stand-alone retailer
saw significant progress in preparing the business
for an increasingly competitive landscape.
Following the change and uncertainty experienced during
2013-14, Aurora Energy has emerged as an independent,
committed energy retailer with a core focus on its customers
and the Tasmanian community. The result has seen Aurora
Energy achieve strong operating and financial performance for
the year.
During 2014-15, Aurora Energy embedded a new operating
model and prepared for competition in the newly contestable
residential and small business customer segments.
Throughout the year, the business continued to undertake
improvements which targeted increased efficiencies and
focussed on improving customer service outcomes and
reducing operating costs. This focus, together with a number
of other operational and business support activities, has
enabled Aurora Energy to position itself as a responsive low
cost energy retailer.
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Strengthening for a competitive
landscape
The groundwork laid during 2014-15 has resulted not only
in robust operational and financial performance, but also
ensured that Aurora Energy is well positioned to continue
strengthening for an increasingly competitive landscape
whilst maintaining its focus across the Tasmanian community.
Consistent with this focus, Aurora Energy entered into new
community partnerships and sponsorship initiatives to support
Tasmanian not-for-profit community organisations, targeting
those activities which make a practical difference to the lives
of Tasmanians.
Although our operating and financial performance for the
year was pleasing, we recognise that there is additional work
to be undertaken in order to create further value for our
Shareholders and the community. This includes the business
continuing to focus on the identification of cost drivers to
target further efficiencies as we maintain operating as a lowcost retailer.

Against this backdrop Aurora Energy will also need to meet a
number of challenges including operating in an increasingly
competitive environment, particularly in the small business
segment, the potential impacts arising from both state and
national policy changes which will start to take effect over
the coming 12 months. To mitigate these potential impacts
Aurora Energy’s key focus will be to work with stakeholders
and regulators to ensure that any changes are of benefit to
customers and do not have a detrimental impact on costs, and
to undertake the necessary system and process changes to
reduce the operating risk profile of the business.
Lastly, I would like to thank the Aurora Energy team for
its extensive efforts over the past 12 months. The results
achieved by the business directly correlate to the passion,
accountability, team work and commitment shown by all
employees and our achievements represent a significant
contribution to ensuring Aurora Energy meets its vision of
being valued by its customers and providing sustainable
returns to the Tasmanian community.

Rebecca Kardos
Chief Executive Officer
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7. Statement of corporate
intent
Company Overview

A u r o ra E n e r g y ’s S t ra t e g i c D i r e c t i o n

Aurora Energy is a State-owned Company
established in 1998 under the Electricity
Companies Act 1997. Aurora Energy’s two
Shareholders are the Minister for Energy and the
Treasurer.

Aurora Energy is a State-owned Company providing electricity
and gas retail services for more than 276,000 Tasmanian
customers. Aurora Energy offers a number of electricity and
gas products which tailor to the needs of customers through
tariffs, market contracts and payment options.

Aurora Energy has successfully completed the transition
to a stand-alone retailer in Tasmania competing in a fully
contestable electricity market, with its primary purpose being
the retailing of electricity to Tasmanian customers. A further
purpose is to undertake the retailing of gas.

Aurora Energy’s Vision, ‘Aurora Energy is valued by its
customers and provides sustainable returns to the Tasmanian
community’, captures the principal objective of Aurora Energy
and its key characteristics of success. Its vision promotes an
efficient, customer orientated, cost-effective business which
recognises the value it can provide as a Tasmanian entity to its
Shareholders, customers and suppliers.

The principal objectives of the Company as outlined in
the Electricity Companies Act 1997 and the Constitution’s
Memorandum of Association are:

Underpinning the Vision Statement are four strategic themes
that will enable Aurora Energy to deliver its Vision:

•

•

•

to operate its activities in accordance with sound
commercial practice; and
to maximise its sustainable return to its Shareholders.

Aurora Energy pays dividends to the Shareholders which are
used by the Government for the benefit of the Tasmanian
community.

Shareholders’ Statement of
Expectations
Aurora Energy’s strategic direction for 2015-16 and beyond
was developed on the basis of a set of underlying business
imperatives.
These are to:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
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focus the business on the delivery of core electricity 		
retail services on mainland Tasmania;
position the ongoing business for full retail 			
competition and ensure that it is market compliant;
maintain maximum flexibility for a future divestment
of the business in the medium term;
operate the business in accordance with sound 		
commercial practice;
optimise business efficiency by purchasing support 		
services from TasNetworks or other providers as 		
appropriate;
manage the wholesale and other risks of operating in
an open and competitive retail market in Tasmania; 		
and
maintain a customer-centric focus, support vulnerable
customers and efficiently deliver the State’s electricity
concessions on behalf of the Government.

•
•
•

provide consistent, proactive, strong customer service
linked to customer value;
influence industry and regulatory changes for the benefit
of Aurora Energy and the Tasmanian community;
application of efficient systems, processes and practices;
and
delivered by committed, capable, valued and passionate
people who care about what they do and the important
role they play in the community.

Key Performance Measures
To monitor progress against the strategic focus and objectives
outlined above, Aurora Energy has developed a new set of
key financial and non-financial performance measures and
associated targets for 2015-16.

Key performance measures
Strategic theme

Key
performance
indicator

Target
2015-16

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

+15

+15

+15

+15

>70%

-

-

-

0.4-0.9

0.4-0.9

0.4-0.9

0.4-0.9

>98%

>93%

>89%

>84%

Annual profit after tax
target

$20.6M

$19.8M

$16.9M

$14.7M

Accumulated cost
reductions against base
year 2014-15

0%2

4%

6%

10%

Compliance

Improvement in Non
Compliance events
related to NECF

<4

<2

0

0

Regulated cost
to serve per
customer

Regulated cost to serve
per customer

Within
allowance

Within
allowance

Within
allowance

Within
allowance

Program
of work
performance

% on target

95%

95%

95%

95%

Returns to
Government

Annual returns to
Government ($M per
year-Accruals)

$27.8

$26.9

$25.0

$21.6

Rolling
12 month
medically
treated injury
frequency rate
(MTIFR)

Number of medically
treated injuries per
1 000 000 hours
worked

0

0

0

0

Unscheduled
leave

Unplanned leave
- average days per
headcount per annum

<7

<6

<5

<5

Performance measure

Provide consistent,
Customer
Customer loyalty
proactive, strong
loyalty
customer service linked Grade of service % of calls answered in
to customer value
30 seconds1
Complaint
frequency rate

Number of complaints
per 100 customers
(on a rolling quarterly
basis)

Customer
retention

Total share of
customers

Application of efficient Profit
systems, processes and
practices
Operating costs

Delivered by
committed, capable,
valued and passionate
people who care about
what they do and the
important role they
play in the community

To be discontinued when Customer Loyalty reporting commences.
Strategic initiatives will be identified in 2015-16 to reduce costs over the remaining Corporate Plan period.

1
2
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8. Customer & the community
Our customers

Small business customers

Aurora Energy’s Customer Vision:  “Providing
consistent, proactive, strong customer service
linked to customer value”.

Aurora Energy recognises the important role small
businesses play in the Tasmanian economy given
that our State has nearly 40,000 businesses across
a range of sectors with more than 95 per cent of
these small businesses.

During a period of change throughout the 2014-15 year,
Aurora Energy had a primary focus on retaining customers
through the provision of appropriate products, pricing and
services. Moving forward this focus will also assist in building
customer loyalty which is critical to Aurora Energy’s future
success and ability to generate value for Shareholders and
the Tasmanian community. With this in mind, a range of new
initiatives were developed and designed to continue the
improvement of all customer service measures throughout the
period.

Customer service

During 2014-15, Aurora Energy developed new products for
small business customers and introduced a dedicated small
business sales and service team. To further complement this
approach, a direct phone line for small business customers is
now available to make it easier for small business customers to
interact with Aurora Energy.
In addition to the direct phone line for small business
customers, the extension of operating hours in 2014-15 will
also assist small businesses in Tasmania.

Aurora Energy commenced development of a new
Customer Excellence Framework, including the
introduction of a Voice of Customer program, a
mechanism to regularly listen to how the business
is performing from the perspective of its customers
and to identify improvement opportunities.

More time
for you.

Since implementation, early results from the program
are encouraging and are illustrative of Aurora Energy’s
commitment to service excellence. The program will be
formally measured from 1 July 2015 and performance will
be captured as part of the annual performance reporting
measures outlined in Section 7 of this Report.

Our new team of small
business representatives
are dedicated to you.

Aurora Energy extended the operating hours of its customer
service centres during 2014-15, with customers now able to
contact the business via telephone Monday to Friday between
the hours of 8am – 6pm. Providing more flexible operating
hours can be an important measure in shaping a customer’s
experience with Aurora Energy, particularly given it can often
be the only contact a customer has with the business.

0639EA

Call our Small Business Sales & Service team on
1300 13 2045 during our new operating hours
8am to 6pm Monday to Friday.
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www.auroraenergy.com.au

Customer feedback
Easy:
“The staff member I spoke to was extremely
helpful and I would recommend Aurora Staff as
exceptional.”
Expertise:
“The lady I spoke with was polite, courteous
and knowledgeable. She answered my
questions and solved my query with a minimum
of fuss. Also I was helped by the person that
answered my call, without being transferred
from one extension to another.”
P r o a c t i v e :  
“When leaving a message to call back, please
give a direct number rather than making your
customer wait or be transferred to the ‘correct
department’ multiple times.  Especially during
business hours, when customer needs to take
breaks from work to call you back.”
R e s p o n s i v e :  
“Got through to someone really quickly and
they were able to update my request with no
trouble.”
Ownership:
“Different operators were able to answer my
questions. I only had to explain my situation
once over a span of several phone calls and
each operator knew what had happened
during the last call immediately moving the call
forward. Other businesses could learn a thing or
two from this.”
14

Yo u r E n e r g y S u p p o r t ( Y E S ) p r o g r a m
A key area of focus over the past 12 months
for Aurora Energy has been on proactively
identifying and supporting vulnerable customers.  
Underpinning this support has been Aurora
Energy’s introduction of the “Your Energy
Support” (YES) program, directly aimed at assisting
Tasmanians in financial difficulties to manage their
energy expenses.

YES program participants:
2000

1500

1000

The YES program provides the framework to identify
vulnerable customers and provide them with the ability to take
control of their energy usage and bill. The YES program helps
customers to remain connected with energy-saving tips and
tools, budgeting advice and tailored, flexible and affordable
payment plans for immediate and longer-term relief.
The results to date have seen participants increase from 973
at 1 July 2014 to 1,663 at 30 June 2015, representing a 70 per
cent increase for the year. Encouragingly, customer debt upon
entry to the YES program reduced across the corresponding
period by 15 per cent, demonstrating the increase in the
proactive approach taken with vulnerable customers.
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July
2014

Aug
2014

Sep
2014

Oct
2014

Nov
2014

Dec
2014

Jan
2015

Feb
2015

March
2015

April
2015

May
2015

June
2015

Building on the success of the YES program, and
consistent with the Tasmanian Government’s
Tasmanian Energy Strategy, Aurora Energy
has partnered with the Tasmanian State
Government to commit an additional $2M over
the next two years to expand the scope and
reach of the YES program to more than 2,500
vulnerable customers.

Aurora Energy YES program team, top left; Megan Collins, Teresa Vrakatselis, Craig McKinlay and Debbie Shearing,
bottom left; Vicki Marriot, Jamie Henderson and Christy Francis, (missing Kim MacFarlane).

‘YES’ for Amanda
Amanda first connected her electricity account in
1997. For the first six years Amanda paid her bills
when they fell due.
In 2006, Amanda’s son was diagnosed with a life threatening
illness. As a result, her son required a life support system
powered by electricity. Amanda notified Aurora Energy to
register the life support system at her property. This was
important for two reasons:
1) this step meant that Aurora Energy and TasNetworks
were aware that Amanda’s property had a life support
system in place when TasNetworks went to schedule routine
maintenance to the electricity network or respond to
unplanned outages; and
2) it also meant that Amanda was now eligible for a life
support concession which provides a daily discount on her
electricity bill.

“

I am very grateful for the support the YES team
has provided and the heater made a difference
immediately.

”

More
ways to
help you.
Our Your Energy
Support (YES)
program is here to offer
you the help you need,
when you need it most.
To find out more about
how we can assist you,
call our YES team on
1300 10 2010.

Unfortunately, due to difficult circumstances, Amanda fell
behind in her electricity payments. In September 2014, Aurora
Energy’s YES team made contact with Amanda to discuss her
circumstances in detail. Amanda was subsequently placed
on the YES program and has not missed a single payment
since entering the program. Not only is Amanda making sure
her energy consumption is paid for each quarter she is now
starting to reduce her debt.
As part of her YES program participation, an energy audit
revealed Amanda was using two inefficient plug-in heaters 24
hours a day, seven days a week due to her son’s illness. The
YES program seeks to apply tailored solutions to individual
customer circumstances.
In Amanda’s case, to acknowledge her strong commitment
to the YES program and one of the main contributing factors
in her energy use, Aurora Energy was able to exchange the
inefficient heaters as part of a heater exchange program for a
more effective heater.

www.auroraenergy.com.au

“I am very grateful for the support the YES team has provided
and the heater made a difference immediately.” Amanda said.
Amanda has seen a reduction in her consumption since the
heater exchange and this will help her to continue to reduce
her overall debt without having to increase her ongoing
payments.
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Our community
Aurora Energy supports initiatives which assist
Tasmanians in a practical and transparent manner
and generate local benefits.
The commencement as a stand-alone retailer, focused on
energy retail activities in Tasmania, provided the opportunity
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for Aurora Energy to review its approach to its community
engagement and support activities to maximise its reach
across the State.
Through its Community Sponsorship Policy, Aurora Energy
seeks to be an active participant in the Tasmanian community.
Sponsorship opportunities which support local, communitybased initiatives for Tasmanian not-for-profit community,
sporting, volunteer and welfare groups are targeted.

Aurora Energy hosted a ‘day at the footy’ for families from the Association for Children with Disability (TAS) at
Aurora Stadium in May 2015

Community partnerships

•

Aurora Energy supported Ride Tasmania for Autism
Awareness, in its third year, to raise awareness of children
in Tasmania living with autism. The ride commenced
in April 2015 from Parliament House and covered the
majority of the State (1,400 km across 12 days) and
included numerous school and community stops.

•

As part of its revised community support focus, Aurora
Energy sought to utilise its function space at AFL games to
provide opportunities to those who might not normally be
able to easily access games.

•

Aurora Energy hosted four AFL game functions at Aurora
Stadium in 2014-15, inviting young Tasmanian carers,
adult carers, children with disabilities and their families.
Additional seated tickets were also provided to Tasmanian
Association for Children with Disability, the Variety Club of
Tasmania and the Tasmanian Men’s Shed Association.

•

Aurora Energy’s Chief Executive Officer, Rebecca Kardos
participated in the 2015 CEO Sleepout at Aurora Stadium,
raising more than $8,700 towards reducing homelessness
in Tasmania.

During 2014-15 Aurora Energy entered into a
number of community partnership arrangements.
•

•

Aurora Energy has partnered with Carers Tasmania to
fund a program of activities throughout 2015 to raise
awareness amongst young Tasmanian carers, both to
assist young carers to self-identify as a carer, and also
to access specific programs targeted at assisting them.
Young Tasmanian carers attended the launch of the
partnership at Aurora Stadium in April 2015, coinciding
with National Youth Week.
Aurora Energy has partnered with Tasmanian Association
for Children with Disability to support them to produce
their regular newsletter, PEP Talk (Parents Empowering
Parents). This support has in turn allowed ACD to invest in
its online resources and other programs.

•

In 2014-15, Aurora Energy continued its well-established
relationship with NILs Tasmania, the provider of
community lending for Tasmanians. NILs provides no
interest loans to low income Tasmanians to help purchase
essential items and services including energy efficient
appliances, whitegoods and heat pumps. As part of this
relationship, Aurora Energy’s Chief Executive Officer,
Rebecca Kardos is a member of the NILs Committee of
Management.

•

Aurora Energy supported the Menzies Research Institute
Tasmania to undertake a heart screening program for
West Coast community members to help save lives in rural
and regional Tasmania. The equipment utilised for the
community screenings is not readily available outside
of the major centres, making access difficult for those
potentially in most need. This region presents with the
nation’s highest rate of heart disease, third highest
rate of high blood pressure and fourth highest rate of
smoking.

•

Aurora Energy was a major sponsor of the 2014
TasCOSS Annual Conference. This provided
an invaluable opportunity to engage with the
Tasmanian community services and welfare sector
to demonstrate the contribution Aurora Energy
can make within the sector including assisting
vulnerable customers.

•

Aurora Energy is the major sponsor of the 2015
Financial Counselling Tasmania Inc. Bi-annual
Conference. The group comprises members
from Anglicare Tasmania’s financial counselling
staff, rural financial counsellors, Relationships
Australia’s gambling financial counsellors and the
Salvation Army’s Tasmanian financial counsellors.
Aurora Energy and conference participants possess
a shared interest in the well-being of financially
vulnerable Tasmanians.
Aurora Energy CEO, Rebecca Kardos, participating in the 2015 St Vinnies
CEO sleepout
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Donations
Consistent with Aurora Energy’s Community Sponsorship Policy, a number of donations were provided by
Aurora Energy in 2014-2015 to a range of Tasmanian not-for-profit organisations.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Appin Hall Children’s Foundation
Tasmanian ANZAC Centenary Dinner Committee
Launceston City Mission
Kennerley Caring for Kids
Tasmanian Eye Institute
Risdon Vale Neighbourhood Centre
Hobart City Mission
Rotary Club of Hobart
Rural Business Tasmania Inc.
HeartKids
Nexus Inc.
Lara Jean Association
Tasmanian PCYC
Make A Wish Foundation
Zeehan Gem and Mineral Fair Association Inc.
Fight Cancer Foundation
MS Society
Duchenne MD
Jordan River School Farm
Eskleigh Foundation
Whitelion Bailout
St Giles
Anglicare Tasmania
Cancer Council Tasmania
Giant Steps

Aurora Energy hosted a ‘day at the footy’ for families from the Association for Children with Disability (TAS) at
Aurora Stadium in May 2015
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9. Corporate governance
Aurora Energy is a proprietary limited company established under the Electricity Companies Act 1997
(Tas) and incorporated under Corporations Law. As a state-owned corporation, its shareholders are the
Minster for Energy and Tasmanian Treasurer, on behalf of the Tasmanian community.
The commencement of operations as a stand-alone retailer on 1 July 2014 was a marked departure from Aurora Energy’s
previous 17 years as a combined distributor and retailer. As a result, Aurora Energy’s Corporate Governance Framework was
extensively revised to be fit for purpose for the competitive retail environment.
Aurora Energy adopts both the Tasmanian Government’s Corporate Governance Principles (2008) and the ASX Corporate
Governance Council’s Corporate Governance Principles & Recommendations (3rd ed.) If a contradiction arises between the two,
Aurora Energy complies with the Tasmanian Government Principles to reflect their design specifically for government-owned
enterprises. Aurora Energy’s shareholders have issued a series of other Guidelines designed to support and complement their
Corporate Governance Principles.
The following information summarises Aurora Energy’s disclosures against both sets of Principles. A complete set of disclosures
and further supporting information is available on Aurora Energy’s website, www.auroraenergy.com.au.

Board composition
Aurora Energy is managed by a Board of
up to five directors and a management
team led by the CEO. The Board
has had one vacancy since 26
November 2014.
The Board has two permanent
committees: Board
Appointments and and
Remuneration Committee;
and the Board Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee.

Aurora Energy Board members, clockwise from top left, Rebecca Kardos, Geoff Willis
Caryle Demarte and Yvonne Rundle
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Aurora Energy Board
Mr Geoff Willis (Chairman), B.Com,
MBA, FAICD, FCPA
Geoff was appointed to the Board
of Aurora Energy in November
2007 and has been Chairman
since November 2011. He is a
member of Aurora Energy’s Board
Appointments and Remuneration
Committee and Board Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee. The Board recognises Geoff as an
independent Director.
Geoff has had an extensive career including appointments as
Managing Director of the Amcor Paper Group and as Chief
Executive Officer of Hydro Tasmania.
Amassing considerable experience as a director, Geoff has
chaired Tasmania’s water and sewerage corporations, the
Tasmanian Symphony Orchestra and Colorpak Ltd, and is
currently Chair of the Tasmanian Museum and Art Gallery.
In 2014 as part of the State Government’s reform of the
Tasmanian energy sector, Geoff was a member of the
Tasmanian electricity industry’s Network Integration Transition
Board in 2014 and director of TasNetworks Pty Ltd during its
incorporation.
In October 2014, Geoff was awarded the Gold Medal by the
Australian Institute of Company Directors (Tasmanian Division)
for services to governance and the Tasmanian community.
Mrs Yvonne Rundle,  B.Bus, FCA,
GAICD, FTIA
Yvonne was appointed to the
Board of Aurora Energy in January
2015. Yvonne is the Chair of Aurora
Energy’s Board Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee and a
member of the Board Appointments
and Remuneration Committee.
The Board recognises Yvonne as an independent Director.
As a Chartered Accountant with over 30 years of experience
in public practice, Yvonne specialises in business advice and
taxation services.
Yvonne has experience in a range of board roles with her
current roles including Director of the Synectic Group of
companies, AGW Funds Management Ltd, and Fairbrother
Foundation Pty Ltd.
Yvonne is a former Director and Chair of Audit and Risk
Committees for both Port of Devonport Corporation Pty Ltd
and TOTE Tasmania. From 2005 to 2011 Yvonne served on the
University of Tasmania Council, and was appointed Deputy
Chancellor in 2008.
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Ms Caryle Demarte PSM, B.Bus,
FAICD
Caryle was appointed to the Board
of Aurora Energy in April 2006. She
is the Chair of Aurora Energy’s Board
Appointments and Remuneration
Committee and a member of
Board Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee. The Board recognises
Caryle as an independent Director.
Possessing a strong background in the energy sector, Caryle’s
previous roles have included General Manager of Victorian
Government-owned gas retailer, Kinetik Energy, and General
Manager Corporate Relations, Public and Government Affairs
and Retail with TXU.
Caryle also has comprehensive experience with governing
boards, including Yarra Valley Water, Synergy, Australia
Customer Services Pty Ltd, Victorian Energy and Water Industry
Ombudsman, VENCorp, a number of not-for-profit sector boards
and the Energy Retailers Association of Australia.
Caryle currently chairs the Local Government Infrastructure
Assistance Fund for the Victorian Government and is a director
of Jacana Energy in the Northern Territory.
In 2002, Caryle was awarded a Public Service Medal for services
to the Victorian community.
Mrs Rebecca Kardos, B.CompSc,
MBA, MAICD
Rebecca was appointed to the
Aurora Energy Board in November
2014.
Rebecca joined Aurora Energy in
February 2014 as CEO-Designate
preceding the commencement of
Aurora Energy as a stand-alone retail business on 1 July 2014.
Prior to this, Rebecca held the position of General Manager
Retail at Synergy in Western Australia. Rebecca’s previous roles
include a range of senior positions within the utilities sector in
both Australia and New Zealand.
The Board recognises Rebecca is not an independent Director.
Rebecca is currently a committee member of No Interest
Loans Network Tasmania (NILS) and a Board member of the
Energy Retailers Association of Australia. Rebecca recently
retired as Secretary of the not-for-profit organisation, Top End
Association for Mental Health.

Dr Michael Vertigan AC, B.Ec
(Hons), Ph.D., Hon LLD, FAICD, FIPA  
Michael was a director of Aurora
Energy from November 2010 until
his retirement in November 2014.
Michael chairs the Australian
Maritime College and is Chair of
the Expert Panel undertaking a
cost-benefit analysis and review
of regulation of the National Broadband Network. He is also
a Board member of the Commonwealth Superannuation
Corporation and the Australian Treasury Advisory Council.

Company Secretary: Mrs Carolyn
Pillans, B.Com, GradDipACG, AGIA,
ACIS, GAICD
Carolyn was appointed Company
Secretary from 1 July 2014. Carolyn
is a qualified Chartered Secretary
with ten years’ experience as a
company secretary and executive
manager.
She is presently a non-executive director and Treasurer of
Lifeline Tasmania.

More recently, Michael was appointed Chair of the Expert
Panel for the Review of Governance Arrangements for
Australian Energy Markets.
Previously Michael was a Director of Eraring Energy and
chaired both the Australian Government Solar Flagship Council
and the Australian Government Energy Security Council.

Mr Martin Wallace, B.Ec (Hons),
MAICD
Martin was a Director of Aurora
Energy from November 2013 until
his resignation in November 2014.
Martin was Secretary of the
Tasmanian Department of Treasury
and Finance from October 2010
until his retirement in July 2013.
He formerly held a number of senior executive roles in the
Tasmania public sector, including a general manager role
and member of Aurora Energy’s Executive Team from 2004
to 2010. Prior to this, Martin was Deputy Secretary of the
Tasmanian Department of Health and Human Services.
Martin has also been a Director of the Tasmanian Public
Finance Corporation and a member of the State Grants
Commission, among a number of Board appointments in his
career.
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Board and Committee Attendance and Professional Development
Activities 2014-15
Board Member

Rebecca Kardos

•

•

•

Board and
Strategy, AICD

Yvonne Rundle

•

•
•

•

Induction Program
Board and
Strategy, AICD
NEM Overview,
AEMO

Director from
26.11.14
REM & BARCC
member in
December 2014
only
Director from
1.1.15
BARCC Chair from
1.1.15

Michael Vertigan

•

Retired as
Director 30.11.14

Martin Wallace

•

BARCC Chair
1.7.14 to
30.11.14
Resigned as
Director 30.11.14

•

Includes one out of session meeting
Attended in the role of CEO

1
2
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Attended

•

Eligible to
attend

Board and
Strategy, AICD

Attended

•

Director since
April 2006
REM Committee
Chair

Eligible to
attend

•

Attended

Caryle Demarte

Eligible to
attend

•

Board and
Strategy, AICD

Attended

•

Director since
November 2007
Board Chair since
November 2011

Board Risk
Appetite
workshop

Eligible to
Attend

•

Board
Strategy
Day

Attended

Formal continuing professional
development undertaken this year

Geoff Willis

•

REM
BARCC
1
Committee

Eligible to
attend

•

Board

12

11

4

4

6

5

1

1

1

1

12

12

4

4

6

6

1

1

1

1

7

7

1

1

1

1

-

12

1

1

5

5

2

2

2

2

-

-

1

1

6

6

1

1

3

2

1

1

-

-

6

4

1

1

3

1

1

1

-

-

A u r o r a E n e r g y L e a d e r s h i p Te a m
Mrs Rebecca Kardos, B.CompSc,
MBA, MAICD.
Chief Executive Officer
Rebecca joined Aurora Energy in
February 2014 as CEO-Designate
preceding the commencement of
Aurora Energy as a stand-alone
retail business on 1 July 2014.
Rebecca was appointed as a Director of Aurora Energy in
November 2014. A summary of her background is included in
the Board composition above.

Mrs Michelle Brooks, B.Com,
MAHRI.
Manager People and Performance
The People and Performance
Team is responsible for human
resource strategy, culture and
change management, recruitment,
employee relations, remuneration
and benefits and organisational
development for Aurora Energy.
Previously, Michelle was People Manager for Aurora Energy’s
Corporate and Energy Divisions. Prior to that, Michelle was
Employee Relations Manager at Norske Skog Pty Ltd, and
Assistant HR Manager at Tassal Operations Pty Ltd.

Mr Grant Russell, BA (Hons),
PGDip, MBA.
General Manager Customer
Operations

Mr Kane Ingham B.Com, CA,
GradDipACG.
Group Manager Commercial
Services
The Commercial Services Team
is responsible for undertaking
the financial, corporate affairs
and strategy functions for Aurora
Energy. The Team completes
activities such as financial planning and analysis, financial
accounting, energy and network settlements, contract
management, communications, stakeholder relations, and
community engagement.
Kane has been at Aurora Energy since 2008 and has experience
in a range of areas including finance, strategy and project
management.
Mrs Mel Lukianenko, MBA, MAICD.
Chief Information Officer
The Retail Systems Team is
responsible for all facets of
Information Technology for
Aurora Energy. The Team is
responsible for all ICT activities
including internal service delivery,
application administration and
implementation, vendor and outsourcing management, project
delivery and business intelligence to enable the business to
meet its objectives.
Mel has experience in a range of areas including service
delivery, application development, infrastructure management
along with extensive project management experience. Mel is
a Board Member of TASICT and a member of the Australian
Institute of Project Management. Mel has also attended the
CIO Academy residential program at Oxford University (UK).

Customer Operations is responsible
for delivering high quality outcomes
for all customers.
The Customer Operations Team
is the key touch point for inbound and outbound customer
contact, online services, sales, marketing, collections and
vulnerable customers, as well as providing a consistent
application of customer service standards. The Team also
manages energy purchasing, new products and pricing.
Grant brings 14 years’ experience in the contestable energy
market.

24

A u r o r a E n e r g y L e a d e r s h i p Te a m
(continued)
Mrs Carolyn Pillans, B.Com,
GradDipACG, AGIA , ACIS, GAICD.   
Company Secretary/Group
Manager Business Services  
The Business Services Team is
responsible for Board, director and
governance services, legal services,
procurement and the functions
of risk, compliance, regulatory,
internal audit and emergency management.
The Risk, Regulatory and Compliance Team maintains Aurora
Energy’s regulatory relationship with AEMO and OTTER, and
administers management frameworks particularly focussing on
energy risk and compliance, corporate risk and compliance and
AFSL compliance.
Carolyn’s background is included in the Board composition
above.
Mr Tim Pearson, AssocDegEng,
GradDipBusAdmin.
General Manager Revenue
Management
The Revenue Management Team is
responsible for customer billing and
payments, and market interactions.
The Team performs billing, payment
and receipting activities for all Aurora Energy’s electricity,
gas and Pay As You Go customers. The Team also administers
the establishment of customers’ market information to meet
Aurora Energy’s obligations in the National Electricity Market.
Tim has worked in the electricity utility industry for more than
33 years.

Aurora Energy organisational chart 2014-2015

Chief Executive
Officer
Rebecca Kardos

Chief Information
Officer
Melissa Lukianenko
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Manager People &
Performance
Michelle Brooks

Group Manager
Commercial Services
Kane Ingham

Company Secretary
/ Group Manager
Business Services
Carolyn Pillans

General Manager
Revenue Management
Tim Pearson

General Manager
Customer Operations
Grant Russell

Corporate governance principles
Principle 1 - Lay solid foundations for management
and oversight by the Board
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 1 although takes a
different approach to the diversity recommendation.
Board members, along with their qualifications and meeting
attendances, are detailed earlier in this Corporate Governance
section.
The Board’s role and responsibilities are articulated in the
Board Charter and Matters Reserved to the Board, both of
which are available on Aurora Energy’s website. Amongst
other things, the Board governs the business under the Act;
approves high level strategy, policy and risk appetite; monitors
performance; oversees risk management and the internal
control environment; and maintains communications with
shareholders.

Team against specific key performance indicators established at
the beginning of each year. Evaluations have occurred throughout
the year in accordance with the agreed process.
Relevant Charters, Codes and policies, including Matters Reserved
to the Board, are available at www.auroraenergy.com.au.

Principle 2 - Structure the Board to add value
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 2.
Shareholders revised Aurora Energy’s Constitution in 2014.
One of the changes reduced the size of the Board from eight to
five directors to reflect the scale of the ongoing retail business.
At the 2014 Annual General Meeting, two independent
directors were reappointed and two new directors appointed,
one of whom is not independent. The Board presently has one
vacancy.
In accordance with the Constitution, the Shareholders
reappointed Director Willis as Chair at the 2014 AGM.

The CEO and Leadership Team manage the business on a day
to day basis, while the Board’s Delegation Policy specifies other
responsibilities and powers delegated to management.

The status of each director’s independence is assessed on
appointment and is disclosed in each director’s biography
above.

The Board Charter also sets out the role of the Board Chair and
directors’ rights to access company information, professional
advice and the Company Secretary.

Non-executive directors meet from time to time without
management present.

Directors are appointed through letters of appointment
which address the criteria recommended in Principle 1 and
include role statements. Individual executives are appointed
under employment contracts and have extensive position
descriptions.
The Board appoints and dismisses the Company Secretary and
this position is accountable to the Board directly on matters
regarding the proper functioning of the Board. The Board is
involved in the Company Secretary’s performance review.
The value of diversity is embedded in Aurora Energy’s policies
and practices. Collectively, Aurora Energy’s Code of Conduct and
human resource policies address the need for fair, equitable and
merit-based appointments and access to opportunities. The
Board may assess the need for measurable objectives from time
to time. However, given the current composition of both Board
and Leadership Team, further measures are not considered
necessary at this stage.
The Directors Selection Advisory Panel is guided by the
Shareholders’ “Board Appointments Guideline” which addresses
the inclusion of diversity considerations in the selection
process. This Guideline also addresses the due diligence to be
undertaken on new director candidates as part of the Panel’s
recommendations to shareholders.
The Board Charter includes the requirement to evaluate the
performance of the Board annually. This was completed
internally in October 2014 and outcomes actioned over the year.
An external review commenced in August 2015.
Through the Board Appointments and Remuneration Committee,
the Board evaluates the performance of the CEO and Leadership

The Charter of the Board Appointments and Remuneration
Committee prescribes its responsibilities regarding senior
management appointments, performance and succession
planning, as well as organisational and remuneration
structures. Membership of the Committee and meeting
attendances are listed earlier in this section.
The Committee provides input into the Shareholder-convened
Directors Selection Advisory Panel as needed.
The Shareholders’ “Board Appointments Guideline” describes
the composition of the Director Selection Advisory Panel which
includes the Board Chair (unless the Panel is considering the
role of Chair). The Board prepares its optimal Skills Matrix for
the Panel and this is regularly refreshed.
The Board redesigned its Director Induction program this
year to reflect its smaller composition and the new operating
environment. The program is managed by the Board Chair and
Company Secretary.
The Board Charter commits to continuing professional
education for directors and a small budget is provided.
Formal education undertaken this year is included earlier
in this section. Additional briefings on industry and market
developments were also provided to the Board.
Further information on the Board Appointments and
Remuneration Committee is provided under Principle 8. Its
Charter and other policies are available at
www.auroraenergy.com.au.
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Principle 3 - Promote ethical and responsible
decision making
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 3.
The Board Charter commits the Board to maintaining
the highest ethical standards. Along with their letters of
appointment, the Charter expects directors to demonstrate
the spirit and intent of Aurora Energy’s Code of Conduct as
well as comply with all applicable legislation, lawful direction
from Shareholders and company policies.
The Code of Conduct is supported by a range of internal
policies, many of which were refreshed in 2014-15.
The Board Appointments and Remuneration Committee
oversees the Code of Conduct and its integration into the
company’s culture.
The Code of Conduct and other relevant policies are available
at www.auroraenergy.com.au.
Aurora Energy complies with the Right to Information Act
and Public Disclosures Acts. In accordance with each Act, the
following disclosures are provided for 2014-15.
Right to Information Act statistics 2014-15
Number of applications received for
assessed disclosures

3

Number of applications refused and the
Section: S12(3)(c)(ii)

1

Number of applications relating to
exempt information and the relevant
sections

Nil

Number of applications for internal
review and the outcomes

Nil

The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee met without
management present as appropriate during the year.
As part of the end-of year processes, the Committee received
the required declarations by the CEO and Group Manager
Commercial Services (CFO-equivalent), under S295A of the
Corporations Act.
As required under the Audit Act 2008 (Tas), the Tasmanian
Auditor-General is appointed by the Shareholders at each
AGM. The Auditor-General attended the 2014 AGM.
The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee’s Charter
and relevant policies are available at auroraenergy.com.au.

Principle 5 - Make timely and balanced disclosure
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 5 as it applies to its
context.
The Board approved a new Shareholder Communications
Policy during the year which reflects its commitment to
effective communications. The Policy addresses the principles
for timely, factual, complete and balanced information.
Established processes are in place to recognise and routinely
communicate material matters as well as those requiring
continuous disclosure. The Chair and CEO met with
Shareholders (or their representatives) frequently throughout
the year.

Number of disclosures received by Aurora
Energy

Nil

The Board’s Delegation Policy and supporting protocols
articulate authorisations to speak to media or comment
publicly on behalf of the company.

Number of disclosures reported by
Aurora Energy to Ombudsman

Nil

Relevant policies are available at www.auroraenergy.com.au.

Number of disclosures referred by
Ombudsman to Aurora Energy

Nil

Public Interest Disclosure Act statistics 2014-15

Principle 4 - Safeguard integrity in financial
reporting
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 4.
The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee oversees
corporate and financial reporting processes, risk management
and internal control, and compliance and audit frameworks.
Membership of the Committee, and meeting attendances for
2014-15 are provided earlier in this section. It is chaired by an
independent director who is not the Board Chair.
Executive Director/CEO Rebecca Kardos was a member of the
Committee for one meeting in December to meet quorum
requirements while the Board had two vacancies.
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This year, the Committee focussed on ensuring the financial
impacts of the disaggregation of the Distribution Business
were correctly managed, and the financial and compliance
management systems and processes were redesigned and
appropriately robust to suit the new operating environment of
the retail business.

Principle 6 - Respect the rights of shareholders
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 6.
Under its Charter and Matters Reserved to the Board,
the Board maintains the relationship with the company’s
Shareholders.
The Constitution specifies the rights and responsibilities
of Shareholders. As well, Shareholders can issue various
Guidelines and Directives to the company. Accordingly,
Shareholders have issued a Statement of Expectations to the
Board which is incorporated in the company’s Corporate Plan
and the Board agrees a Statement of Corporate Intent with
Shareholders each year.
As noted in Principle 5, the Shareholder Communications
Policy also addresses the rights of Shareholders. This Policy
includes an extensive calendar of meetings with and reporting
to Shareholders each year and ensures Shareholders have

access to the Company Secretary in relation to shareholdings.
The AGM is chaired by Shareholders.
The Board Charter and relevant policies are available at
www.auroraenergy.com.au.

Principle 7 - Recognise and manage risk
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 7.
As stated under Principle 4, the Board Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee oversees the system of risk
management and internal control, amongst other things.
The Committee reviewed Aurora Energy’s risk framework
during the year. It also reviewed current and emerging risks
throughout the year and monitored the status of plans and
controls to manage those risks. The Committee formally
reported to the Board during the year on the status of risk and
the integrity of the risk management framework.
The risk management framework addresses all emerging and
current risks facing the company. Material risks were discussed
directly with Shareholders at regularly scheduled meetings.
The Board Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee oversaw
the internal audit function which is undertaken by a specialist,
outsourced firm. The Committee approved the internal audit
plan, received reports of all audits conducted and monitored
management actions to address findings.

The Shareholders determine directors’ remuneration under
the Government Board and Committee Remuneration
Framework. Therefore, any changes are at the Shareholders’
discretion and advised to the Board accordingly.
Note 26 of the 2014-15 Financial Statements details the
remuneration of directors and key management personnel,
and its composition.
In 2014-15, the Board Appointments and Remuneration
Committee focussed on establishing the new organisation
structure, revising remuneration frameworks, overseeing the
negotiation of the next enterprise agreement and monitoring
the development and implementation of a program to reset
the company’s internal culture.
Membership of the Committee, and meeting attendances,
are provided earlier in this section. Executive Director/CEO
Rebecca Kardos was a member of the Committee for one
meeting in December to meet quorum requirements while the
Board had two vacancies. The Committee did not deal with any
matters that involved the CEO’s remuneration or performance
at that meeting.
The Committee also met without management present as
appropriate during the year.
The Committee Charter and other policies are available at
www.auroraenergy.com.au.

The Committee took the opportunity to meet separately
with internal and external auditors and the heads of risk,
compliance and legal as necessary.
During 2014-15, the Committee focussed on ensuring the risk
management systems and processes were redesigned and
appropriately robust to suit the new operating environment
of the retail business. An externally-facilitated workshop was
held to assess the company’s risk appetite and the Board
approved risk appetite statements.
Membership of the Committee, and meeting attendances for
2014-15, are provided earlier in this section.
The Committee’s Charter and relevant policies are available at
www.auroraenergy.com.au.

Principle 8 - Remunerate fairly and responsibly
Aurora Energy complies with Principle 8.
On behalf of the Board, the Board Appointments and
Remuneration Committee oversees Aurora Energy’s
remuneration framework, including executive remuneration
policy, company-wide remuneration strategies, enterprise
agreement renegotiations and related matters.
The Board approved the revised Executive Remuneration
Policy during the year to ensure it fully complied with the
new Shareholder Guidelines for Director and Executive
Remuneration. This was subsequently confirmed to
Shareholders.
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10. Shareholder guidelines
As noted above, there a number of guidelines
issued by Shareholders to State-owned entities.  
The compliance with these is addressed
throughout this Report and the accompanying
financial statements.
Below relates to those pertaining to the Tasmanian
Government’s Buy Local, Payment of Accounts and Overseas
Travel guidelines.

Buy local
Under the Buy Local Guidelines for Tasmanian Government
Businesses, entities are required to establish appropriate
reporting regimes in relation to purchases, consultants and
the use of Tasmanian businesses and provide details of these
annually through their respective Annual Reports. Details for
Aurora Energy for the 2014-15 financial year are provided in
the table below.
Purchases from Tasmanian business
% of purchases from
Tasmanian business
Value of purchases from
Tasmanian business

95%
$799,318,694.493

Includes energy purchases from Hydro Tasmania made
through the National Electricity Market.
3

Consultancies valued at more than $50,000 (ex GST)
There were three consultants
engaged for $50,000 or more
totalling4

$603,441.11

There were 18 other
consultants engaged for
$50,000 or less totalling

$163,904.96

Total payments to
consultants

$767,346.07

Contracts with these consultants prohibit disclosure of
confidential information.
4
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Payment of accounts
Measure
Creditor Days

45.2

No. of accounts due for
payment

2,985

No. of accounts paid on time

2,494

Amount due for payment

$978,255,087.84

Amount paid on time

$972, 304,323.96

Number of payments for
interest on overdue accounts
Interest paid on overdue
accounts

0
$0.00

Payments not paid in accordance with the due date required
further action to be taken before payment could be made. For
example, invoices may have been incomplete or inaccurate or
they may have been disputed when the invoice did not match
goods or services.

Overseas travel
No Aurora Energy employees or Directors undertook overseas
travel for the company during 2014-15.
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Directors’ report
Directors’ Report on the Operations of the
Company and on the Financial Statements for the
Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015.
Directors and Company Secretary
The Directors of the Company in office between 1 July 2014
and the date of this report were Mr G. Willis, and Ms C.
Demarte PSM.
Mrs R. Kardos and Mrs Y. Rundle joined the Board on 26
November 2014 and 1 January 2015 respectively and remained
as Directors at the date of this report.
Dr M. Vertigan AC and Mr. M Wallace were Directors from 1
July 2014 until they retired on 30 November 2014.
Mrs C. Pillans was the Company Secretary between 1 July 2014
and the date of this report.
Principal Activities
The principal business activities during the year were the
retailing of electricity and gas to customers within the State of
Tasmania.
Review and Results of Operations and State of Affairs
Effective from 1 July 2014, Aurora Energy’s distribution and
telecommunication activities, assets, rights and liabilities
were transferred to TasNetworks via a gazetted Transfer
Notice dated 25 June 2014. Following the transfer, and with
the introduction of full retail contestability, Aurora Energy
operated as a standalone competitive retail business in
Tasmania throughout the year to 30 June 2015.
Aurora Energy implemented a new organisational structure,
and undertook major process and systems transformation
activities which allowed the Company to operate successfully
on a much smaller scale.
The following table outlines key financial information for the
Company:
Indicator ($M)

2014-15

2013-14

949.0

1,201.5

Profit Before Tax

45.0

65.1

Total Comprehensive Income

43.7

65.9

Net Assets

83.3

563.0

57.3

44.7

34.8

70.7

Operating revenue

Cash on Hand

1

Shareholder Returns2

Cash on Hand includes a term deposit of $20M that is categorised as
a financial asset for the purposes of the financial statements.
1

2

Shareholders returns is calculated on a cash basis and includes

31 dividends paid and other distributions.

A direct comparison of the financial results between the last
two financial years is not possible due to the abovementioned
transfer of distribution related assets to TasNetworks.
Directors have therefore conducted the operations and
financial performance review for the year in comparison with
the budget and the net asset position on 1 July 2014.
Aurora Energy achieved strong financial results for 2014-15.
Profit Before Tax of $45.0M exceeded budget expectations by
$33.9M with higher than projected retention of customers,
and significantly lower than budgeted operating costs.
Aurora Energy’s net asset position as at 1 July 2014, amended
to $39.6M following the transfer of distribution assets and
liabilities to TasNetworks, improved by $43.7M over the course
of the year. This improvement was predominately due to the
strong earnings of the business, and favourable movements
in Aurora Energy’s cash position and financial derivative
valuations.
A dividend in relation to the 2013-14 year was declared
prior to 30 June 2014, with the provision for this dividend
transferred to TasNetworks on 1 July 2014 as part of the
Transfer Notice. As such, a dividend was not declared or paid
by Aurora Energy during the 2014-15 year, however a dividend
of $27.6M was recommended to the Shareholders on 12
August 2015 in relation to the earnings of the 2014-15 year.
Likely Future Developments
There are no foreseeable developments likely to present a
material impact on the operations of Aurora Energy over the
next 12 month period.
Environmental Regulation
The operations of the Company are subject to State and
Commonwealth environmental legislation including the
Tasmanian Environmental Management and Pollution Control
Act 1994 and the Commonwealth Environment Protection
and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. No environmental
protection notices were served, prosecutions launched or fines
issued against Aurora Energy under environmental legislation
during the year under review.
Indemnification and Insurance
Aurora Energy has indemnified its directors and executive
officers to the extent permitted by law against liabilities and
legal costs incurred by them while acting in their capacity as
directors and executive officers of the company.
The company has insured its directors, company secretary
and executive officers of the company against liabilities as
permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The premium paid
during the year for this insurance was $41,602 (excluding GST).

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required
under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out at
part II of the Financial Report.
Rounding of Amounts
Amounts in the Financial Statements have been rounded off
in accordance with that Class Order 98/100 to the nearest
thousand dollars.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

Mr G. Willis
Chairman
12 August 2015

Mrs Y Rundle
Director
12 August 2015
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Directors’ declaration
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Aurora Energy Pty Ltd, we state that:
In the opinion of the directors:
(a)

the financial statements and notes of the Company are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including

		
(i)
			
		
(ii)
			

giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2015 and of its 		
performance for the year ended on that date;
complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) and
the Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b)
there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they 		
		
become due and payable.
		
On behalf of the Board

Mr G. Willis
Chairman
12 August 2015

Mrs Y Rundle
Director
12 August 2015
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Statement of comprehensive income for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
Consolidated
Note

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Revenue

2A

948,951

1,201,470

Other gains/(losses)

2A

(825)

1,501

Energy and network purchases

2A

(815,842)

(681,424)

Electricity derivative fair value movements

2A

(979)

(79,958)

Functional expenses

2A

(38,946)

(180,060)

Finance costs

2G

(217)

(54,533)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

2H

(7,247)

(102,344)

(39,911)

(39,571)

44,984

65,081

(13,497)

(1,090)

31,487

63,991

Other expenses from operating activities
Profit before income tax equivalent expense
Income tax equivalent expense

3

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of assets

10,20(b)

103

26,688

19

323

(7,364)

(128)

(5,797)

298

13,527

20(b)

43,629

(13,083)

20(b)

(26,624)

(3,520)

3(b),20(b)

(5,102)

4,981

11,903

(11,622)

Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax equivalent

12,201

1,905

Total comprehensive income for the period

43,688

65,896

Actuarial superannuation re-measurement gains/(losses)
Income tax equivalent relating to items that will not be reclassified subsequently

3(b),20

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Cash flow hedges:
(Loss)/gain taken to equity
Transferred to profit for the year
Income tax equivalent relating to item that may be reclassified subsequently

35

Notes to and forming part of the accounts are included on pages 39-83

Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015
Consolidated
Note

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

5

37,345

44,679

Trade and other receivables

6

145,034

176,550

Inventories

7

15,485

20,732

Financial assets

8

22,803

6,514

Other current assets

9

3,716

6,126

224,383

254,601

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

10

3,727 1,466,593

3(d)

7,471

59,484

Intangible assets

11

20,090

69,670

Financial assets

12

13,720

34,597

Total non-current assets

45,008 1,630,344

Total assets

269,391 1,884,945

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

13

131,772

123,208

Borrowings

16

-

103,290

Current tax payable

3(c)

2,566

22,294

Provisions

15

1,891

61,052

Other current liabilities

14

30,652

67,465

166,881

377,309

-

659,280

3(d)

9,503

143,062

Provisions

17

2,993

104,139

Other non-current liabilities

18

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

16

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

6,688

38,139

19,184

944,620

186,065 1,321,929

Net assets

83,326

563,016

EQUITY
Issued capital

30

50,212

232,319

Reserves

20

1,401

184,434

Retained earnings

21

31,713

146,263

83,326

563,016

Total Equity

Notes to and forming part of the accounts are included on pages 39-83
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Statement of changes in equity for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
Consolidated

Note

Share
Capital

Asset
revaluation
reserve

Cash flow
hedge
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total
equity

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Balance 1 July 2013

225,116

182,732

(5,357)

152,427

554,918

Profit for the period

-

-

-

63,991

63,991

Disposal of assets - revalued amount

-

-

-

-

-

Other comprehensive income

-

18,681

(11,622)

(5,155)

1,904

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

18,681

(11,622)

58,836

65,895

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Contributed capital

1

7,203

-

-

-

7,203

Dividends paid/provided

22

-

-

-

(65,000)

(65,000)

232,319

201,413

(16,979)

146,263

563,016

(182,107)

(201,413)

6,405

(146,263)

(523,378)

50,212

-

(10,574)

-

39,638

Profit for the period

-

-

-

31,487

31,487

Disposal of assets - revalued amount

-

-

-

-

-

Other comprehensive income

-

72

11,903

226

12,201

Total comprehensive income for the period

-

72

11,903

31,713

43,688

50,212

72

1,329

31,713

83,326

Balance 30 June 2014
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
Capital return (transfer to TasNetworks)
Balance after transfer to TasNetworks

Balance 30 June 2015
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Notes to and forming part of the accounts are included on pages 39-83

Statement of cash flows for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
Consolidated
Note

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers

1,041,785

1,334,960

2,428

965

(984,794)

(1,088,150)

(121)

(40,653)

Government guarantee fees

-

(9,679)

Income tax equivalents paid

(32,932)

(29,881)

26,366

167,562

Interest received
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest and other finance costs paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

29(c)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

19

3,256

(14)

(107,038)

(935)

(31,644)

Payment for bank term deposits

(20,000)

-

Net cash used in investing activities

(20,930)

(135,426)

Proceeds from contribution of equity

-

7,203

Proceeds from borrowings

-

582,483

Repayment of borrowings

-

(569,726)

Dividend paid

-

(25,000)

Net cash provided by financing activities

-

(5,040)

5,436

27,096

31,909

4,813

37,345

31,909

Payment for property, plant and equipment
Payment for intangible assets

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year

Notes to and forming part of the accounts are included on pages 39-83

29(a)
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Aurora Energy Pty Ltd notes to and forming part of the statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2015

1.  Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

In subsequent notes, transfers as part of this 			
Administrative Arrangement are referred to as “transfer to
TasNetworks”. The $40M dividend declared 			
by Aurora Energy for the year ended 30 June 2014 was 		
paid by TasNetworks in December 2014, as prescribed in 		
the Transfer Notice;

Aurora Energy Pty Ltd is a private company, incorporated in
Australia and operating in Australia.
Aurora Energy’s registered office and its principal place of
business are as follows:

•

Full retail competition was introduced in Tasmania on 1
July 2014. Aurora Energy continued as an energy retailer
in Tasmania from 1 July 2014;and

•

Following the AETV transfer and final reconciliation, an
adjustment was made which led to an equity contribution
of $7.296M from the shareholders in the 2013-14 year.

Registered office: Level 1 21 Kirksway Place HOBART TAS 7000
Principal place of business: 21 Kirksway Place HOBART TAS
7000
With effect from 1 July 2014, the primary purpose of the
company is the retailing of electricity to Tasmanian customers.
A further purpose is to undertake the retailing of gas. Up
until 30 June 2014 the entity’s principal activities were the
distribution and retailing of electricity.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the
directors on 12 August 2015.
Basis of preparation
The financial report is a general purpose financial report
which has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001 as amended and Australian Accounting Standards
(AASBs), and complies with other requirements of the law.
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000)
unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis
under the historical cost convention with the exception of
certain property, plant and equipment and corresponding
depreciation, investments and derivative financial instruments
which are carried at fair value.
On 15 May 2012 (and in subsequent updates) the Minister for
Energy announced a comprehensive and integrated reform
package for the Tasmanian electricity industry which has
significantly affected Aurora Energy’s principal activities:
•

On 1 July 2014, the merger of Aurora Energy’s 		
distribution and telecommunications businesses with
Transend Pty Ltd concluded, with the new business
Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd (TasNetworks) commencing
operations on 1 July 2014. The relevant assets and
liabilities were transferred from Aurora Energy to
TasNetworks via a gazetted Transfer Notice dated 25 June
2014. At the same time, Aurora Energy’s facility limits
under its Master Loan Facility Agreement were amended
as follows:

(i)
		
(ii)
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$902M of the facility limit was transferred to
TasNetworks; and
an amount of $80M was added to the facility
limit.

The transfer was accounted for as an Administrative 		
Arrangement under AASB 5, as a distribution to Aurora 		
Energy’s shareholders equivalent to the net assets 		
(at book value) of $523.378M, for nil cash consideration. 		

In resolving that the 2014-15 financial statements be prepared
on a going concern basis the Directors have relied on the
projected financial performance, cash needs requirements,
borrowing and facility limits approved and in place and the
balance sheet projected in the 2016 Corporate Plan.
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies,
Aurora Energy is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgments. These matters have been considered
in these financial statements. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
Judgements made by Aurora Energy in the application of
accounting standards that have significant effects on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are disclosed, where
applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial statements.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 33.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner
which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is
reported.
In the current year, the Company has adopted all of the new
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board that are relevant to
its operations and effective for the current annual reporting
period. The Company has reviewed and where relevant
adopted the following standards:
•

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014.
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•

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable
Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

•

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014.

•

AASB 2013-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Investment Entities for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

•

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting
standards for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2014.

				
(a)
Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared
by combining the financial statements of all
entities that comprise the Group in 2014, being
the company (the parent entity) and its controlled
entities. Controlled entities are all those entities over
which the parent entity has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. Consistent accounting
policies were employed in the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements include the
information and results of each controlled entity from
the date on which the company obtains control and
until such time as the company ceases to control such
entity. In 2015, all figures relate to Aurora Energy as a
single entity.

The adoption of these standards has no material financial
impact on the financial statements of the Company.
The following standards and amendments were available for
early adoption but have not been applied by the Company in
these financial statements:
•
•

•

•
•

•

•

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2014) revised
standard. AASB 9 is applicable for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(December 2014) new standard replacing AASB 118, AASB
111 and various interpretations for annual reporting
periods on or after 1 January 2017.
AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation is applicable for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 15 is applicable for annual
reporting periods beginning 1 January 2017.
AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) is
applicable for annual reporting periods beginning 1
January 2018.
AASB 2014-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) is
applicable for annual reporting periods beginning 1
January 2015.
AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Annual Improvements to Australian
Accounting Standards 2012–2014 Cycle is applicable for
annual reporting periods beginning 1 January 2016.

The analysis of the financial impact of the adoption of
these Standards and Interpretations in future periods is not
complete except for AASB 2014-8 which will have no material
financial impact on the financial statements of the Company.
These Standards and Interpretations will be first applied in
the financial report of the Company that relates to the annual
reporting period beginning after the effective date of each
pronouncement.
The following significant accounting policies have been
adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial
report:

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
all intercompany balances and transactions, and
unrealised profits arising within the Group, were
eliminated in full.
(b)

Revenue recognition and unbilled electricity sales
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable to the
extent it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably
measured.
Revenue from the sale of electricity to retail
customers is recognised at the time of the provision
of the electricity to the customer. Income from the
sale of retail electricity is the value of electricity units
supplied to customers during the year. Included in
this income is unbilled electricity. Unbilled electricity
sales is an estimate of the value of electricity units
supplied to customers between the date of the last
meter reading and the year end, and is included in
electricity sales (refer notes 6 and 33).
Revenues are not accrued or deferred for amounts
that are allowed to be recovered from customers
(or credited to them) through regulatory pricing
mechanisms in future years. These include amounts
that are recoverable or will result in credits to
customers as a direct result of under or over
recoveries in the current and prior periods.

(c)

Inventories
Inventories including stores’ items and renewable
energy certificates are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
Stores items are valued at purchase cost on an
average purchased cost basis. The cost of purchase
comprises the purchase price, import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the taxing authorities), transport,
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equipment is revalued, any accumulated
depreciation at the date of the revaluation
is restated proportionately with the change
in the gross carrying amount of the asset so
that the net carrying amount of the asset
after revaluation equals its revalued amount.

handling and other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the stores (note 7).
(d)

Property, plant and equipment
(i)

Valuation
Distribution/metering assets (excluding PAYG
Payguards) were revalued at 30 June 2014
to the regulated asset base which Aurora
Energy believed approximated its fair value.

(ii)

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is based on the straight-line
method so as to write off the net cost
or other revalued amount of each asset
over its expected useful life. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the
period of the lease or estimated useful life,
whichever is the shorter, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each annual reporting
period.

The valuation methodology for distribution/
metering assets reflected the National
Electricity Rules which regulate the revenue
from these assets. Aurora Energy valued the
grid assets based on the revenue generation
capacity of the assets, as determined by the
Australian Energy Regulator. Valuations were
conducted annually. All distribution assets
were transferred to TasNetworks on 1 July
2014.
The Pay As You Go Payguard assets, that
remained with Aurora Energy from 1 July
2014, were revalued at 30 June 2015 to their
written-down optimised replacement value
and equates with their fair value.
The fair value of land and buildings was
assessed as either a market value where
known or the Valuer-General’s most recent
valuation. All land and buildings were
transferred to TasNetworks on 1 July 2014.
The value of certain other assets, e.g. motor
vehicles and minor assets such as computers,
is assessed as those assets’ historical written
down value because of their low value,
short lives and high turnover. Leasehold
improvements are recorded at depreciated
cost. All classes of assets are adjusted for any
accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on the above asset
classes over the remaining useful lives of the
assets on a straight-line basis (note 10).
Revaluation increments are credited to the
asset revaluation reserve in equity, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrement for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increment is recognised in profit or loss.
Any revaluation decrement is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent that it
offsets a previous revaluation increment for
the same asset, in which case the decrement
is debited directly to the asset revaluation
reserve to the extent of the credit balance
existing in the revaluation reserve for that
asset.
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When an item of property, plant and

Depreciation

In accordance with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment balances of accumulated
depreciation are transferred to the
appropriate asset accounts when assets are
revalued each year.
The depreciation rates used for each class of assets were:
Class of non-current asset

Depreciation Rate

Buildings

2.0%

Underground high voltage
lines

1.7%

Zone substations

2.5%

Overhead lines

2.9%

Distribution substations

2.5%

Meters

3.3%

Payguards

6.7%

Service connections

2.9%

Optical fibre

5.0%

Tools

10.0%

Motor vehicles

16.0%

Computer equipment

33.3%

(e)

Intangible assets
Computer software is recorded at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is generally charged on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of five years. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method is
reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
The customer care and billing system is recorded at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over
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the estimated useful life. The original estimated
useful life was 12 years. Effective 1 July 2012 the
useful remaining life was amended to 3 years being
the period Aurora Energy expected to provide retail
services to purchasers of the Retail Book as a result
of electricity industry reforms. With the Government
decision not to sell the Retail Book, the remaining
useful life was reassessed to be 8 years from 1 July
2013 (6 years from 30 June 2015).

bonds with terms to maturity that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future
cash outflows. In 2014 and prior years, the
discounting was done using market yields on
government bonds, as the Actuaries Institute
of Australia judged that Australia did not
have a deep enough market in high quality
corporate bonds. The change in the basis
of the discount rate reduced the 2015 long
service leave provisions by $0.041M from
that using the government bond discount
rates and this reduced the disclosed labour
costs in the statement of comprehensive
income. The effect of the change in basis of
the discount rate used on the provisions for
future periods is not practicable to estimate.
Annual leave and long service leave
provisions are classified as current where the
company does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting
date. This does not imply that there is an
expectation that the current provision will be
paid out within the next twelve months.

Changes in the expected useful life of an asset
are accounted for prospectively by changing the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, which
can result in a change in an accounting estimate.
(f)

Employee benefits
(i)

Superannuation
The Retirement Benefits Fund (RBF) is a
defined benefits superannuation scheme for
Tasmanian Government employees. The RBF
liability carried represents the present value
of the defined benefit obligation adjusted
for unrecognised service cost net of the
fair value of the plan assets. The net assets,
operating costs and investment returns of
the RBF are allocated to Aurora Energy based
on the percentage of funded past service
liabilities for Aurora Energy compared to the
funded past service liabilities for the whole
of government. The RBF scheme was closed
to new members from 15 May 1999.
The RBF is funded by employee and employer
contributions. Employee contributions to the
funds are transferred to RBF. An internal net
interest charge, calculated by the application
of market-related interest rates and after
advice from the Company’s actuary, is added
to this provision each year.
Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in the
statement of other comprehensive income
and are recorded as a movement in retained
earnings.

(ii)

Other employee entitlement provisions
Contributions to these provisions are
charged directly to cost centres as part of
employment costs. The Company adopts
the present value basis of measurement
methodology where the liability recognised
is the present value of expected non-current
future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to
reporting date. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and
periods of service. Expected future payments
are discounted using market yields at the
reporting date on high quality corporate

(g)

Taxation
The Electricity Companies Act 1997 section 14
requires the Company to comply with part 10 of
the Government Business Enterprises Act 1995. The
Company is required to calculate a tax equivalent as if
it were a company subject to Commonwealth income
tax laws.
(i)

(ii)

Current tax is calculated by reference to
the amount of income taxes payable or
recoverable in respect of the taxable profit
or tax loss for the period. It is calculated
using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by
reporting date. Current tax for current and
prior periods is recognised as a liability (or
asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or
refundable).
Deferred tax is accounted for using the
comprehensive balance sheet liability
method in respect of temporary differences
arising from differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax base of those items.
In principle, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable amounts will
be available against which deductible
temporary differences or unused tax losses
and tax offsets can be utilised. However,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary differences
giving rise to them arise from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities (other
than as a result of a business combination)
42

Aurora Energy Pty Ltd notes to and forming part of the statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
in the separate accounting records of the
members of the tax-consolidated group
using the ‘separate taxpayer within group’
approach. Current tax liabilities and assets
and deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and tax credits of the members of
the tax-consolidated group were recognised
by the company (as head entity in the taxconsolidated group). Due to the existence
of a tax funding arrangement between
the entities in the tax-consolidated group,
amounts were recognised as payable to
or receivable by the company and each
member of the group in relation to the
tax contribution amounts paid or payable
between the parent entity and the other
members of the tax-consolidated group in
accordance with the arrangement. Where
the tax contribution amount recognised by
each member of the tax-consolidated group
for a particular period was different from
the aggregate of the current tax liability or
asset and any deferred tax asset arising from
unused tax losses and tax credits in respect
of that period, the difference was recognised
as a contribution from (or distribution to)
equity participants.
The tax-consolidated group ceased to
exist on 1 July 2014, with the transfer to
TasNetworks of all Aurora Energy’s whollyowned Australian resident entities.

which affects neither taxable income nor
accounting profit.
Furthermore, a deferred tax liability is not
recognised in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from goodwill.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures except where the company is able
to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

		

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
these investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
		
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period(s) when
the asset and liability giving rise to them
are realised or settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax for the period
		
Current and deferred tax is recognised as
an expense or income in the statement of
comprehensive income, except when it
relates to items credited or debited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also recognised directly in equity, or where
it arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, in which case it is
taken into account in the determination of
goodwill or excess.

(iii)
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Tax consolidation
The company and all its wholly-owned
Australian resident entities were part of a
tax-consolidated group under Australian
taxation law. Aurora Energy Pty Ltd was the
head entity in the tax-consolidated group.
Tax expense/income, deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets arising from
temporary differences of the members of
the tax-consolidated group were recognised

(h)

Receivables
Trade receivables and other receivables are recorded
at amounts due less any allowance for impairment.
The balance of the allowance for impairment is
reviewed monthly. An allowance for impairment is
recognised when there is objective evidence that the
receivable may not be able to be collected. Financial
difficulties of the debtor and default payments are
considered objective evidence of impairment. There
is an algorithm applied to debtor balances that
determines gross doubtful debts, based on the age of
those debts and past collection history. This is then
adjusted for proportionate recoveries. Any other
known contingencies are taken into consideration.

(i)

Payables
Trade payables and other accounts payable are
recognised when the Company becomes obliged to
make future payments resulting from the purchase
of goods and services. Due to their short-term
nature they are not discounted. The carbon liability
payments the Company was obliged to make under
the Clean Energy Act, during the fixed price period
to 1 July 2014, was recognised as a Trade and other
payable. Due to their short-term nature they were
not discounted. The Clean Energy Act was repealed
effective from 1 July 2014.
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(j)

Goods and services tax

(l)

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent, if
any, of the impairment loss.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of
the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:
(i)

where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, it is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of an asset or as part of an item of expense;
or

(ii)

for receivables and payables which are
recognised inclusive of GST, the net amount
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables.

Where the asset does not generate cash flows that
are independent from other assets, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-inuse, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market rates and the risks
specific to the asset (or cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an
asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash
flows on a gross basis.
(k)

Goodwill
Any goodwill acquired in a business combination is
initially measured at its cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the entity’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised at the
date of the acquisition. Any goodwill is subsequently
measured at its cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but only to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair
value, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

For the purposes of impairment testing, any goodwill
is allocated to each of the entity’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, expected
to benefit from the synergies of the business
combination. Cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that goodwill might be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) is less than
the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units), the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and then to the
other assets of the cash-generating units pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units). An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is recognised immediately in profit or loss and is
not reversed in a subsequent period. On disposal
of an operation within a cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal of the
operation.
At 30 June 2015, the Company has not recognised any
goodwill in assets.

Impairment of assets excluding goodwill

(m)

Customer contributions applied towards capital
works
Customer contributions applied towards capital
works were treated as revenue under accounting
Interpretation 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers.
Where capital works were incomplete, customer
contributions in excess of the works completed were
included as a liability in the statement of financial
position.
Since 1 July 2014, customer contributions are no
longer applicable to the Company.

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less that are readily convertible
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to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the
purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Any bank overdrafts are included within trade and
other payables on the statement of financial position.
(o)

Contributed Equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

(p)

Derivative Financial Instruments

recorded in profit or loss on the statement of
comprehensive income immediately, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
or liability that is attributable to the hedged risk.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedge
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised,
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged
item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to
profit or loss on the statement of comprehensive
income from that date.
Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or
losses relating to ineffective portions are recognised
immediately in profit or loss on the statement of
comprehensive income. Amounts deferred in equity
are recycled in profit or loss on the statement of
comprehensive income in the periods when the
hedged item is recognised in profit or loss on the
statement of comprehensive income. However, when
the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in
equity are transferred from equity and included in
the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or
liability.

The Company enters into various financial
instruments including interest rate and electricity
swaps in order to manage financial exposures faced
by the Company from its operations. In accordance
with its Treasury and Energy Risk Policies, the
Company does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. Further details of
derivative instruments are disclosed in note 31.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each
reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the statement of comprehensive
income immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit
or loss on the statement of comprehensive income
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
On the date the contract is entered, each contract
is recorded in Aurora Energy’s hedge accounting
system where the relevant effectiveness tests and
documentation is created at inception and all further
designation and valuation data is recorded. The fair
value of a hedging instrument is presented as current
or non-current based on the timing of the contractual
cash flows, with cash flows expected to be realised or
settled after 12 months classified as non-current and
cash flows expected to be realised or settled within
12 months classified as current. Other derivatives are
presented as current assets or current liabilities.
Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
or other host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their risk and characteristics are
not closely related to those host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss on
the statement of comprehensive income.
(q)

Hedging
The Company designates certain derivatives as either
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities of firm commitments (fair value hedges) or
hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash
flow hedges).
Fair value hedges
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
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Hedge accounting is discontinued when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss
deferred in equity at that time remains in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in profit or loss on the
statement of comprehensive income. When the
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in
equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss on
the statement of comprehensive income.
(r)

Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
borrowings are measured at amortised cost with
any difference between cost and redemption value
being recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings on an
effective interest basis.
Current borrowings are those borrowings that mature
within 1 year of the reporting date, except where
the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting date or the unconditional right
to refinance the borrowings for at least 12 months
after the reporting date. All borrowings that are not
current borrowings are non-current borrowings.
There were no borrowings at 30 June 2015.
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(s)

Renewable energy certificate forward contracts
Renewable Energy Target measures are contained
in the Federal renewable energy legislation that
commenced on 1 April 2001. The aims of the
measures are to increase the proportion of energy
from renewable generators. Renewable energy
generators are able to issue RECs (Renewable Energy
Certificates), where 1 REC is 1MWh of electricity
based on the amount of renewable energy generated
from a defined renewable source. From 1 January
2011, the scheme was split into two parts, the
Large-scale Renewable Energy Target (LRET) and
the Small-scale Renewable Energy Scheme (SRES).
Retailers are required to purchase sufficient largescale generation certificates (LGCs) and small-scale
technology certificates (STCs) (based on a percentage
of the retailers’ energy acquisitions) to meet their
obligations under the Act for each calendar year.
STCs are submitted to the Regulator on a quarterly
basis and LGCs in February of each year. The price
of RECs (LGCs and STCs) varies, so the company has
implemented a purchasing target to mitigate market
risk. Aurora Energy acquires its RECs by forward
REC purchase contracts in accordance with the
benchmark, with purchases on the spot market and
from the STC Clearing House. This allows Aurora
Energy to lock in a price for the future delivery and
settlement of RECs. The liability for the acquittal
of RECs is recognised in the statement of financial
position, trade and other payables, on a continuous
basis as electricity is purchased. The expense for RECs
is recognised on the statement of comprehensive
income, within energy and transmission purchases,
on a continuous basis as electricity is purchased.

estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.
Provisions are measured at the present value of
Aurora Energy’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date. The discount rate used to determine
the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision resulting
from the passage of time (unwinding of discount)
is recognised in finance costs on the statement of
comprehensive income.
A restructuring provision is only recognised when
general recognition criteria provisions are fulfilled.
The Company needs to follow a detailed formal
plan about the part of the business concerned,
the location and number of employees affected, a
detailed estimate of the associated costs, and an
appropriate time line, and the people affected have
a valid expectation that the restructuring is being
carried out or the implementation has been initiated
already.
(v)

Comparisons with previous year
Where necessary, comparative figures are adjusted to
conform with changes in presentation in the current
year.

Any RECs purchased but not yet remitted to the
Regulator are included in inventory.
(t)

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when the
terms of the lease substantially transfer all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased
asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense in the statement of comprehensive income
on a straight line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as an integral part of the total
lease expense.

(u)

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best
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Consolidated

2

Operating Profit

A.

Detailed income statement

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Revenue
Total sales revenue
Interest received (note 2B)
Community service agreements (note 4)

903,817

1,134,514

2,576

983

37,215

36,730

External work sales (note 2C)

-

17,432

Customer contributions (note 1(m))

-

8,432

Rental and lease revenue

-

795

4,922

4,708

421

(2,124)

948,951

1,201,470

12

91

(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of non-current assets (notes 1(l), 10,11)

(837)

1,410

Total gain/(loss)

(825)

1,501

(773,343)

(626,602)

(42,499)

(54,822)

(815,842)

(681,424)

(16,602)

(104,026)

(938)

(2,527)

Services

(3,816)

(34,038)

IT and communications charges

(3,739)

(16,530)

(705)

(3,077)

Connection & services order fees
Other
Total revenue
Other gains/(losses)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 2D)

Energy and network purchases
Energy and network purchases
Renewable energy certificates (note 1(s))
Total energy and network purchases
Functional expenses
Labour
Operating lease rental expense (notes 1(t), 2E)

Licence fees
Customer service level payments

(53)

(3,740)

(166)

(1,680)

Connection & service order charges

(5,456)

(6,310)

Other

(7,471)

(8,132)

(38,946)

(180,060)

Insurance

Total functional expenses
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Consolidated

2

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Operating Profit (continued)
Other major expense items
Finance costs (note 2G)

(121)

(50,710)

(96)

(3,823)

Depreciation and amortisation (note 2H)

(7,247)

(102,344)

Impairment losses on trade receivables (note 6)

(2,695)

(2,849)

Gain/(loss) on derivatives in a fair value hedge accounting relationship

43,359

(16,106)

(43,263)

16,055

1,041

(1,093)

(2,116)

(78,814)

Net interest cost regarding RBF provision (note 2G, 19)

(Loss)/gain on adjustment to hedged item in a fair value hedge accounting
relationship
Unrealised gain/(loss) on electricity derivatives at fair value through P&L
Realised loss on derivatives at fair value through the P&L (note 31(c))
1

Community service agreements - discounts allowed (note 4)
Total expenses
Profit before income tax equivalent expense
Income tax equivalent expense (note 3)
Profit for the year

(37,216)

(36,722)

(903,142)

(1,137,890)

44,984

65,081

(13,497)

(1,090)

31,487

63,991

Electricity derivatives entered into between 1 July 2012 and 26 September 2013 were not designated in a hedge accounting
relationship due to the announced sale of the Retail Business which was subsequently abandoned on 26 September 2013. In the
prior year derivatives of this nature were designated in hedge accounting relationships and therefore disclosed in energy and
transmission purchases.
1
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Consolidated

2

Operating Profit (continued)

B.

Interest revenue
Money market investments

C.

D.

E.

2014

$’000

$’000

1,695

98

Bank investments

35

57

Trade receivables

846

828

2,576

983

Income from external work sales (note 2A)

-

17,432

Less cost of external work sales

-

(11,377)

Gross margin on external work sales

-

6,055

Income from sale of property, plant and equipment

19

3,673

Less cost of sale/scrapping of property, plant and equipment

(7)

(3,583)

Gain on sale/scrapping of property, plant and equipment (notes 1(d), 2A)

12

90

(938)

(2,527)

117,301

(9,263)

18

111

Details of gross margin on external work sales

Details of gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Details of operating lease rental expenses
Minimum lease payments

F.

2015

Net transfer (to)/from provisions for:
Employee entitlements (notes 15, 17)
Workers compensation
Payroll tax

1,080

94

Provision for restructuring

1,906

(419)

120,305

(9,477)

Opening balance

2,200

1,781

Additional provision

(166)

13,670

(1,740)

(13,251)

294

2,200

(121)

(41,031)

-

(9,679)

(121)

(50,710)

(96)

(3,823)

(217)

(54,533)

(345)

(73,480)

-

(760)

(456)

(13,296)

(801)

(87,536)

(6,446)

(14,808)

(7,247)

(102,344)

Provision for restructuring

Utilised
Closing balance
G.

Finance costs
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans
Government guarantee fees
Net interest cost regarding RBF provision (note 19)

H.

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Distribution/meter assets (note 10)
Buildings (note 10)
Other (note 10)
Intangibles amortisation (note 11)
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Consolidated

3

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Income Tax
(a) Income tax recognised in profit
Tax expense comprises:
Current tax expense

13,184

27,717

19

4,500

294

(8,171)

-

(22,956)

13,497

1,090

Profit before income tax equivalent expense (note 2A)

44,984

65,081

Income tax equivalent expense calculated at 30%

13,495

19,524

2

22

13,497

19,546

Under/(over) provision of income tax in prior years

-

4,500

Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in income tax treatment of
unbilled revenue

-

(22,956)

13,497

1,090

(31)

(8,006)

(5,102)

4,981

(97)

2,209

(5,230)

(816)

2,566

22,294

7,471

59,484

Temporary differences

(9,503)

(143,062)

Net deferred liability

(2,032)

(83,578)

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax
of prior years
Deferred tax expense relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences
Effect on deferred tax balances due to the change in income tax treatment
of unbilled revenue
Total tax expense from continuing operations
The prima facie income tax expense on pre-tax accounting profit from operations reconciles
to the income tax expense in the financial statements as follows:

Non-deductible expenses

Income tax equivalent expense
The tax equivalent rate used in the above reconciliation is the corporate tax rate of 30% payable by
Australian corporate entities on taxable profits under Australian tax law. There has been no change in
the corporate tax rate when compared with the previous reporting period.
(b) Income tax recognised directly in equity
The following current and deferred amounts were charged directly to
equity during the period:
Deferred tax:
Property, plant and equipment revaluations
Cash flow hedges
Provisions

(c) Current tax assets and liabilities
Income tax payable attributable to:
Head entity
(d) Deferred tax balances
Deferred tax assets comprise:
Temporary differences
Deferred tax liabilities comprise:
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Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the following:
Consolidated
2015

Opening balance

Acquisition/
disposals

Charged to
income

Charged to
equity

Closing Balance

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Gross deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and
equipment

130,734

(125,379)

Receivables

(797)

31

4,589

-

-

-

-

-

12,328

-

(12,516)

5,102

4,914

143,062

(125,379)

(13,313)

5,133

9,503

Provisions

39,508

(35,583)

(801)

(97)

3,027

Financial instruments &
other

19,976

(2,726)

(12,806)

-

4,444

59,484

(38,309)

(13,607)

(97)

7,471

(83,578)

87,070

(294)

(5,230)

(2,032)

Financial instruments &
other

Gross deferred tax assets:

Consolidated
2014

Opening balance

Acquisition/
disposals

Charged to
income

Charged to
equity

Closing Balance

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Gross deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and
equipment
Receivables
Financial instruments &
other

127,374

-

(4,646)

8,006

130,734

24,268

-

(24,268)

-

-

8,300

-

10,903

(6,875)

12,328

159,942

-

(18,011)

1,131

143,062

38,190

-

(891)

2,209

39,508

7,863

-

14,007

(1,894)

19,976

46,053

-

13,116

315

59,484

(113,889)

-

31,127

(816)

(83,578)

Gross deferred tax assets:
Provisions
Financial instruments &
other
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Consolidated

3

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Income Tax (continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax balances
The following deferred tax assets have not been brought to account as assets:
Tax losses - capital loss on sale of subsidiary

-

633

The unrecognised deferred tax asset was transferred to TasNetworks on 1 July 2014.
Tax consolidation
Relevance of tax consolidation to the Group for 2014.
The company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities formed a tax-consolidated group with effect from 1 July 2003 and
were taxed as a single entity from that date. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group was Aurora Energy Pty Ltd. The
members of the tax-consolidated group are identified at note 27.
The tax-consolidated group ceased to exist on 1 July 2014, with the transfer to TasNetworks of all Aurora Energy’s wholly-owned
Australian resident entities. Clean exit from the tax-consolidated group was given to the subsidiaries.
Unbilled revenue
Aurora Energy accounts for unbilled revenue for customers billed quarterly using an estimate of energy consumed until reporting
date but not yet billed. For taxation purposes, prior to 2014, Aurora Energy had treated quarterly account unbilled revenue as
derived for income tax purposes only when an invoice was issued to customers. This gave rise to a deferred tax liability.
In 2014, Aurora Energy and the Australian Taxation Office (National Taxation Equivalent Regime administrator) agreed a revised
approach whereby Aurora Energy’s tax treatment would transition to the approach consistent with the accrual method used for
accounting. This agreement resulted in a changeover adjustment for the 2010, 2011, 2012, and 2013 years only, taken up in the
2014 years tax return.
The agreement with the Australian Taxation Office resulted in an income tax benefit of $22.956M in 2014, arising from a reversal
of the deferred tax liability.
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Consolidated

4

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Community Service activity agreements
Pensioner discounts
The Company has an agreement with the Crown in right of the State of Tasmania
to provide community services and for Aurora Energy to be reimbursed for the
community services costs and administration costs.

5

Discounts allowed to customers and included in the accounts of the Company

37,216

36,722

Amount billed to the Crown and included in the accounts of the Company

37,215

36,730

1,233

669

36,112

44,010

37,345

44,679

Trade receivables (note 1(h))

49,798

71,704

Accrued income

24,792

35,276

Unbilled energy sales (note 1(b))

75,650

75,860

Provision for impairment

(5,206)

(6,290)

145,034

176,550

Balance at the beginning of the year

6,290

11,373

Transfer to TasNetworks 1 July 14

(426)

-

Impairment losses recognised on receivables

2,695

2,849

(4,673)

(8,780)

Amounts recovered during the year

1,320

848

Balance at the end of the year

5,206

6,290

Less than 30 days overdue

9,252

7,798

Between 31 and 60 days overdue

2,201

1,682

Between 61 and 180 days overdue

2,123

2,766

948

1,109

14,524

13,355

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances
Money market investments

6

Current trade and other receivables

Of the total $49.798M (2014: $71.704M) of trade receivables, $30.582M (2014:
$52.059M) are current with an average of 17.62 days. It is considered that there are
no indications as of the reporting date that the debtors will not meet their payment
obligations, unless otherwise provided.
(a) Movement in the allowance for impairment of debts:

Amounts written off as uncollectable

(b) Included in the allowance for impairment of debts are individually impaired
trade receivables for which $0.144M (2014: $0.212M) has been provided where
the debt is in dispute and subject to negotiation. The Company does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The ageing of these receivables is greater than an
average of 102 days overdue.
(c) Ageing of trade receivables that were past due but not impaired

Greater than 180 days overdue
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On the basis of historical experience no additional provision is required on these residual balances. The Company holds no
collateral over these balances.
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Consolidated

6

2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Current trade and other receivables (continued)
(d) Of the total receivables, $3.274M (2014: $3.622M) are renegotiated
receivables and Aurora Energy has assessed on the basis of historical experience
that not all will be recoverable and an impairment of $0.923M (2014: $1.081M) has
been recorded.
(e) An amount of $5.206M (2014: $6.290M) is considered impaired and has
been provided for. An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable trade
receivable amounts arising from the past rendering of services, determined by
reference to past default experience.

7

Inventories
Stores
Stores (valued at cost)
Allowance for loss on stores (note 1(c))
Renewable energy certificates (valued at cost) (note 1(s))

164

12,198

-

(152)

164

12,046

15,321

8,686

15,485

20,732

Stores and renewable energy certificates recognised as an expense for the year
ended 30 June 2015 totalled $42,626M (2014: $77.773M).

8

Current financial assets
Interest accrued
Bank term deposit 1
Derivative contracts (at fair value) (note 1(p))
Fair value adjustment to hedged item designated in a fair value hedge accounting
relationship
Total current financial assets
1

9

148

18

20,000

-

2,655

8

-

6,488

22,803

6,514

552

2,519

3,145

2,857

19

737

-

13

3,716

6,126

Bank term deposit is with the ANZ Bank for a 6 month period

Other current Assets
Prepayments
Customer services obligation recoveries
Payroll prepaid
Other
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Distribution/
meters at
fair value

Land &
buildings at
fair value

Other at cost

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Property, plant and equipment
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 30 June 2013

2,728,005

43,912

132,139

2,904,056

-

(1,181)

1,181

-

Additions

89,446

671

20,398

110,515

Disposals

(1,130)

-

(7,050)

(8,180)

Net revaluation increments

27,721

(225)

-

27,496

Reclassify assets

Balance as at 30 June 2014

2,844,042

43,177

146,668

3,033,887

Transfer to TasNetworks (iv)

(2,838,935)

(43,177)

(144,176)

(3,026,288)

5,107

-

2,492

7,599

Additions

-

-

14

14

Disposals

-

-

(329)

(329)

148

-

-

148

5,255

-

2,177

7,432

(1,426,041)

(4,774)

(70,297)

(1,501,112)

-

-

-

-

516

-

5,689

6,205

(1,509)

701

-

(808)

-

(100)

-

(100)

1,186

325

-

1,511

Balance after transfer to TasNetworks

Net revaluation (decrement) increments
Balance as at 30 June 2015
Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
Balance as at 30 June 2013
Reclassify assets
Disposals
Net adj. revaluation increments (decrements)
Impairment losses charged to profit (i)
Reversal of impairment losses
charged to profit (ii)
Transfer to assets held for sale

-

59

-

59

(73,480)

(760)

(13,296)

(87,536)

Balance as at 30 June 2014

(1,499,328)

(4,549)

(77,904)

(1,581,781)

Transfer to TasNetworks (iv)

1,497,775

4,549

76,275

1,578,599

(1,553)

-

(1,629)

(3,182)

-

-

323

323

(45)

-

-

(45)

-

-

-

-

Depreciation expense (iii)

Balance after transfer to TasNetworks
Disposals
Net adj. revaluation increments (decrements)
Impairment losses charged to profit (i)
Depreciation expense (iii)

(345)

-

(456)

(801)

(1,943)

-

(1,762)

(3,705)

As at 30 June 2013

1,301,964

39,138

61,842

1,402,944

As at 30 June 2014

1,344,714

38,628

68,764

1,452,106

As at 30 June 2015

3,312

-

415

3,727

As at 30 June 2013

14,827

24

3,115

17,966

As at 30 June 2014

12,696

-

1,791

14,487

As at 30 June 2015

-

-

-

-

Balance as at 30 June 2015
Net book value – at recoverable amount

Capital works in progress – at cost
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Distribution/
meters at
fair value

Land &
buildings at
fair value

Other at cost

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Total property, plant and equipment

(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

As at 30 June 2013

1,316,791

39,162

64,957

1,420,910

As at 30 June 2014

1,357,410

38,628

70,555

1,466,593

As at 30 June 2015

3,312

-

415

3,727

The impairment losses for land & buildings recognised in 2014 related to the Valuer-General’s valuation of some buildings.
Impairment losses are included in the line item ‘other (losses)/gains’ in the statement of comprehensive income.
Reversal of impairment losses are included in the line item ‘other (losses)/gains’ in the statement of comprehensive
income. The reversal of impairment losses for land and buildings in 2014 related to the increases in the Valuer-General’s
most recent valuation of some land and buildings. The reversal of impairment losses for distribution assets in 2014 related
to the revaluation of assets previously impaired in 2013 as part of the 2012-2017 determination by the Australian Energy
Regulator.
Aggregate depreciation allocated during the year is recognised as an expense in the line item ‘depreciation and
amortisation expense’ in the statement of comprehensive income.
Assets transferred to Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd on 1 July 2014 as per the transfer notice dated 25th June 2014.

Payguard Revaluation
Aurora Energy owns the Payguard devices that are situated in the Pay As You Go customers home that allow the control of
prepaid electricity. The Payguard devices are carried at valuation and the Company revalued the Payguard assets as at 30 June
2015 to their written-down optimised replacement value and equates with fair value. The fair value measurement is categorised
as Level 3.
The carrying amounts that would have been recognised had the revalued assets been carried under the cost model are:
Consolidated
2015

2014

$’000
Distribution/Meter Assets*
Land & Buildings

$’000
2,926

1,186,263

-

31,380

* 2015 Distribution/Meter Assets are only PAYG Payguard devices.
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Patents

Computer
software

Total

$’000

$’000

$’000

Intangible assets
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 30 June 2013

272

136,330

136,602

48

41,107

41,155

-

(815)

(815)

Balance as at 30 June 2014

320

176,622

176,942

Transfer to TasNetworks (ii)

(320)

(124,924)

(125,244)

Balance after transfer to TasNetworks

-

51,698

51,698

Additions

-

606

606

Disposals

-

-

-

Balance as at 30 June 2015

-

52,304

52,304

Balance as at 30 June 2013

-

(93,758)

(93,758)

Disposals

-

711

711

Amortisation expense (i)

-

(14,808)

(14,808)

Balance as at 30 June 2014

-

(107,855)

(107,855)

Transfer to TasNetworks (ii)

-

82,595

82,595

Balance after transfer to TasNetworks

-

(25,260)

(25,260)

Impairment (iv)

-

(837)

(837)

Amortisation expense (i)

-

(6,446)

(6,446)

Balance as at 30 June 2015

-

(32,543)

(32,543)

As at 30 June 2013

272

42,572

42,844

As at 30 June 2014

320

68,767

69,087

As at 30 June 2015

-

19,761

19,761

As at 30 June 2013

-

10,094

10,094

As at 30 June 2014

-

583

583

As at 30 June 2015

-

329

329

As at 30 June 2013

272

52,666

52,938

As at 30 June 2014

320

69,350

69,670

As at 30 June 2015

-

20,090

20,090

Additions (iii)
Disposals

Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses

Net book value

Software works in progress – at cost

Total intangible assets

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

57

Amortisation expense is included in the line item ‘depreciation and amortisation expense’ in the statement of
comprehensive income.
Assets transferred to Tasmanian Networks Pty Ltd on 1 July 2014 as per the transfer notice dated 25th June 2014
Computer software additions include $36.451M of distribution and retail costs to prepare for Full Retail Contestability
from 1 July 2014.
Impairment of computer software no longer to be used by the business.
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2014

$’000

$’000

Non-current financial assets
Derivative contracts (at fair value) (note 1(p))

13,720

6,306

-

28,291

13,720

34,597

Trade payables

117,400

81,028

Bank overdraft

-

12,770

638

2,210

12,145

11,451

Fair value adjustment to hedged item designated in a fair value hedge
accounting relationship

13

2015

Current trade and other payables

Accrued expenses
Accrued REC expenses (note 1(s))
Goods and services tax payable

1,589

3,708

-

12,041

131,772

123,208

22,835

24,913

Derivative contracts (at fair value)

5,568

28,033

Fair value adjustment to hedged item designated in a fair value hedge
accounting relationship

2,228

-

-

14,500

21

19

30,652

67,465

Annual leave

870

6,567

Long service leave

446

7,471

Superannuation

137

1,263

56

2,399

-

189

1,509

17,889

-

18

Accrued interest

All trade payables and accrued expenses are unsecured

14

Other current liabilities
Income received in advance

Customer security deposits
Other

15

Current provisions
Employee entitlements:

Retirements Benefits Fund (note 19)
Time bank

Other current provisions:
Workers compensation
Payroll tax
Provision for restructuring
Provision for dividend

Total current provisions

88

945

294

2,200

-

40,000

382

43,163

1,891

61,052
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2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Borrowings
All borrowings transferred to TasNetworks on 1 July 2014.
All semi-government loans were transacted in 2014 through the Tasmanian
Public Finance Corporation (Tascorp). All borrowings were secured by a
floating charge on all present and future trade & other receivables.
(a) Current borrowings

-

103,290

Non-current borrowings

-

659,280

Total borrowings

-

762,570

-

804,940

581

3,962

53

348

2,320

99,566

2,954

103,876

39

263

2,993

104,139

432

38,139

6,256

-

6,688

38,139

Tascorp loans were valued using the market yield to maturity at the end
of the financial year (adjusted for accrued interest) and are included for
information only. The maturity pattern of borrowings has been detailed in
note 31(f).

17

Non-current provisions
Employee entitlements:
Long service leave
Superannuation
Retirements Benefits Fund (note 19)

Other non-current provisions:
Payroll tax
Total non-current provisions

18

Other non-current liabilities
Derivatives contracts (at fair value)
Fair value adjustment to hedged item designated in a fair value hedge
accounting relationship
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Retirement Benefits Fund (RBF)
The RBF is a defined benefit fund which pays lump sum and pension benefits to members upon retirement (most
of which are calculated as a multiple of the member's final average salary). The RBF has Contributory members,
Compulsory Preserved members and pensioners.
The RBF operates under the Retirement Benefits Act 1993 and the Retirement Benefits Regulations 2005. Although
the RBF is not formally subject to the Superannuation Industry (Supervision) (SIS) legislation, the Tasmanian
Government has undertaken to operate the fund in accordance with the spirit of the SIS legislation.
As an exempt public sector superannuation scheme (as defined in the SIS legislation), the fund is not subject to any
minimum funding requirements.
The RBF Board (the Board) is responsible for the governance of the RBF. As Trustee, the Board has a legal obligation to
act solely in the best interests of RBF beneficiaries. The Board has the following roles:
• Administration of the RBF and payment to the beneficiaries when required in accordance with the RBF rules;
• Management and investment of the RBF assets; and
• Compliance with the spirit of the SIS legislation as referred to above.
This actuarial assessment has been provided by the State Actuary, Dr David Knox, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries
of Australia, in a report dated 10 July 2015.

Statement of financial position results
Net liability

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

$'000

$'000

Total Defined Benefit Obligations

2,736

124,672

RBF Contributory scheme assets

(360)

(22,707)

Deficit

2,376

101,965

Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling

-

-

2,376

101,965

56

2,399

2,320

99,566

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

Discount rate1 :

4.80%

4.10%

Salary increase rate:

3.00%

3.00%

Compulsory preserved increase rate

4.50%

4.50%

Inflation (pensions):

2.50%

2.50%

Net liability
Current net liability (note 15)
Non-current liability (note 17)
Key assumptions
Key assumptions as at balance date and for the following year expense

Decrement rates:

As per the most recent actuarial
investigation and report dated 13
January 2014

Note 1. The discount rate for 2015 is based on the high quality corporate bond market, rather than the government bond market used
in 2014 and prior years. The Group of 100 (in conjunction with the Actuaries Institute of Australia) commissioned Milliman Australia to
undertake research in relation to the corporate bond market in Australia. The research concluded that there is a sufficiently observable, deep
and liquid market in high quality Australian corporate bonds which satisfy the accounting requirements of AASB 119.
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Retirement Benefits Fund (RBF) (continued)
Profit and loss results for year
Expense

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

$'000

$'000

Employer service cost (1)
Net interest cost (note 2A)

112

2,417

96

3,823

-

-

-

-

208

6,240

(2)

Recognised past service cost

(1)

Curtailment / settlement (gain)/loss

(1)

Expense recognised
Note 1. Recognised in labour cost
Note 2. Recognised in net interest cost regarding RBF provision

Other comprehensive income results for year
Expense
Actuarial (gains)/losses

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

$'000

$'000

1

(355)

9,030

32

(1,666)

-

-

(323)

7,364

Actual return on plan assets less interest income
Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling
Expense recognised

Note 1. Actuarial (gains)/losses includes $(0.375M) due to movement in the discount rate used for valuation of the liability. If the
government bond rate had been used, instead of the high quality corporate bond rate, the movement would have been $0.229M. It is not
practical to estimate the effect on future period actuarial (gains)/losses.

Movements in the fair value of Plan assets
Fair value of plan assets
Fair value Plan assets at end of prior year
Employer contributions
Interest income
Actual return on plan assets less interest income

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

$'000

$'000

22,707

21,572

-

2,802

15

904

(32)

1,666

Actual participant contributions

32

661

Taxes, premiums & expenses paid

(4)

(190)

Actual benefit payments

-

(4,708)

Foreign currency exchange rate assets

-

-

Business combination assets

-

-

Curtailments/settlement assets

-

-

(22,358)

-

360

22,707

Transfer to TasNetworks
Fair value Plan assets at end of year

(1)(2)(3)

Note 1. Assets are not held separately for each authority but are held for the Fund as a whole. The fair value of Fund assets was estimated
by allocating the total assets to each authority in proportion to the value of each authority’s funded liabilities, calculated using the
assumptions outlined in this note.
Note 2. The fair value of the Fund assets includes no amounts relating to any of the entity’s own financial instruments.
Note 3. The total value of RBF assets includes $19 million relating to the value of 21 Kirksway Place, Hobart valued as at 31 March 2014. This
property is partly occupied by Aurora Energy.
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Retirement Benefits Fund (RBF) (continued)
Fair value of Plan assets as at 30 June 20151

Asset category

Total

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
Level 1

Significant
observable
inputs
Level 2

Unobservable
inputs
Level 3

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

Cash and cash equivalents

62

62

-

-

Equity instruments

246

112

108

26

Debt instruments

48

13

20

15

Derivatives

1

-

1

-

Real Estate

3

-

3

-

Investment funds

-

-

-

-

Asset-backed securities

-

-

-

-

Structured debt

-

-

-

-

360

187

132

41

Total

Note 1. Estimated based on assets allocated to Aurora Energy as at 30 June 2015 and asset allocation of the RBF as at 30 June 2014

Fair value of Plan assets as at 30 June 20141

Asset category

Total

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
Level 1

Significant
observable
inputs
Level 2

Unobservable
inputs
Level 3

$’000

$’000

$’000

$’000

3,158

3,158

-

-

Equity instruments

16,038

8,113

7,278

647

Debt instruments

3,165

916

1,315

934

Derivatives

(118)

-

(118)

-

Real Estate

464

-

464

-

Investment funds

-

-

-

-

Asset-backed securities

-

-

-

-

Structured debt

-

-

-

-

22,707

12,187

8,939

1,581

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Note 1. Estimated based on assets allocated to Aurora Energy as at 30 June 2014 and asset allocation of the RBF as at 30 June 2013
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Retirement Benefits Fund (RBF) (continued)
Movements in the present value of Defined Benefit Obligations

30 June 2015

30 June 2014

$'000

$'000

Total Defined Benefit Obligations (net discount rate)
Total Defined Benefit Obligations at end of prior year

124,672

112,735

Employer service cost plus operating costs

227

2,417

Interest cost

111

4,727

32

661

0

3,782

(375)

3,504

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from liability experience

20

1,744

Taxes, premiums & expenses paid

(4)

(190)

Actual benefit payments

0

(4,708)

Foreign currency exchange rate liabilities

-

-

Business combination liabilities

-

-

Curtailments/settlement liabilities

-

-

New past service costs

-

-

(121,947)

-

2,736

124,672

Actual participant contributions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions1

Transfer to TasNetworks
Total Defined Benefit Obligations at end of year

Note 1. Actuarial gain of $0.552M due to change of discount rate to that of high quality corporate bonds rather than the government bond
rate. Actuarial gains form part of actuarial superannuation re-measurement gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 30 June 2015
Base Case

Scenario A

Scenario B

Scenario C

Scenario D

-0.5%
discount
rate

+0.5%
discount
rate

-0.5% pa
pension
increase
rate

+0.5% pa
pension
increase
rate

Discount rate

4.80% pa

4.30% pa

5.30% pa

4.80% pa

4.80% pa

Pension increase rate

2.50% pa

2.50% pa

2.50% pa

2.00% pa

3.00% pa

Defined benefit obligation ($’000)

2,596

2,857

2,370

2,490

2,714

Scenario A and B relate to discount sensitivity. Scenario C and D relate to expected pension increase rate sensitivity. The
defined benefit obligation has been recalculated by changing the assumptions as outlined above, whilst retaining all other
assumptions.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 30 June 2014
Base Case
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Scenario A

Scenario B

Scenario C

Scenario D

-0.5%
discount
rate

+0.5%
discount
rate

-0.5% pa
pension
increase
rate

+0.5% pa
pension
increase
rate

Discount rate

4.10% pa

3.60% pa

4.60% pa

4.10% pa

4.10% pa

Pension increase rate

2.50% pa

2.50% pa

2.50% pa

2.00% pa

3.00% pa

Defined benefit obligation ($’000)

124,647

135,000

115,466

118,022

131,991
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Retirement Benefits Fund (RBF) (continued)
Risks to RBF
There are a number of risks to which the Fund exposes Aurora Energy. The key risks relating to the defined benefits are:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Investment risk – The risk that investment returns will be lower than assumed and employers will need to increase
contributions to offset this shortfall.
Salary growth risk – The risk that wages or salaries (on which future benefit amounts will be based) will rise more
rapidly than assumed, increasing defined benefit amounts and the associated employer contributions.
Inflation risk – The risk that inflation is higher than anticipated, increasing pension payments and the associated
employer contributions.
Benefit options risk - The risk is that a greater proportion of members who joined prior to 1 July 1994 will elect the
pension option, which is generally more costly than the alternative lump sum option.
Pensioner mortality risk - The risk is that pensioner mortality will be lighter than expected, resulting in pensions
being paid for a longer period.
Legislative risk – The risk is that legislative changes could be made which increase the cost of providing the defined
benefits.

As the scheme is closed to new members and the number of participants has significantly reduced, the risks are
manageable.
Estimate of expense for 2016

30 June 2016
$’000

Current service cost

95

Net interest cost

105

Past service cost

-

Movement in limitation on net assets

^

Effect of curtailments/settlements

^

Estimated superannuation expense

201

^ not known until end of 2016

Aurora Energy is not aware of any asset and liability matching strategies adopted by the Fund
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for Aurora Energy is 19.6 Years.
The expected employer contribution for 2016 is $56,000.
Funding and contribution information
The employer meets the cost of benefits as they emerge by paying a percentage of the benefit as it falls due, as defined
in the Retirement Benefits Regulations 2005.
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2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Reserves
(a)

Reserves comprise

Asset revaluation reserve

72

201,413

1,329

(16,979)

1,401

184,434

201,413

182,732

(201,413)

-

Revaluation of assets in the year

103

28,099

Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation

(31)

(8,007)

-

(1,411)

72

201,413

(16,979)

(5,357)

6,405

-

-

1,168

43,629

(14,251)

43,629

(13,083)

Cash flow hedge reserve

(b)

Movements in reserves

Asset revaluation reserve
Balance at beginning of year
Transferred to TasNetworks

Impairment losses/(reversals)
Balance at end of year
The asset revaluation reserve arises on the revaluation of distribution/meter
assets and land and buildings. Where a revalued asset is disposed of, that
portion of the asset revaluation reserve which relates to that asset, and is
effectively realised, is transferred directly to retained earnings.
Cash flow hedge reserve
Balance at beginning of year
Transferred to TasNetworks
Interest rate swaps
Gain/(loss) recognised
Interest rate swaps
Electricity price swaps
Transferred to profit or loss
Interest rate swaps
Electricity price swaps

Deferred tax arising on hedges
Balance at end of year
The hedging reserve represents hedging gains and losses recognised on the
effective portion of cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss
on the hedge is recognised in profit or loss when the hedged transaction
impacts the profit or loss.
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-

(2,639)

(26,624)

(881)

(26,624)

(3,520)

(5,102)

4,981

1,329

(16,979)
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2014

$’000

$’000

Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of year

146,263

152,427

(146,263)

-

31,487

63,991

-

(65,000)

226

(5,155)

31,713

146,263

Declared, dividends on ordinary shares

-

40,000

Declared and paid, dividends on ordinary shares

-

25,000

27,600

-

Not longer than 1 year

-

1,732

Longer than 1 year and up to 5 years

-

1,732

Longer than 5 years

-

-

-

3,464

691

2,479

2,358

8,201

-

1,828

3,049

12,508

Transfer to TasNetworks
Net profit attributable to members of the parent entity
Dividend provided/paid
Actuarial gain/(loss) on RBF defined benefit plan net of tax
Balance at end of year

22

2015

Dividends
Recognised amounts

Unrecognised amounts
The dividend for the year ended 30 June 2015 has not been recognised in
this financial report because the dividend was declared subsequent to 30
June 2015.
The dividend has been calculated in line with the Shareholders letter of
expectations dated 19 August 2014.
The dividend for the year ended 30 June 2014 was declared, but not paid
prior to 30 June 2014. The provision for this dividend was transferred to
TasNetworks on 1 July 2014.

23

Commitments for expenditure
(a) Property, plant and equipment commitments
Property, plant and equipment

(b) Operating leases (note 1(t))
Non-cancellable operating lease payments
Not longer than 1 year
Longer than 1 year and up to 5 years
Longer than 5 years
Note 23(b) relates to property leases.
The Company leases property under operating leases expiring in 4.75 years,
with a break clause in 3 years. Lease payments comprise a base amount
plus an incremental contingent rental. Contingent rentals are based on
movements in the Consumer Price Index.
All commitments are listed net of GST.
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Contingent liabilities
Claims related to property loss, personal injury (excluding claims by employees for personal injuries), contractual and
other matters, and with an estimated potential cost to the Group in 2014 of $0.320M were transferred to TasNetworks
as part of the gazetted Transfer Notice dated 25 June 2014.
The directors are not aware of any matters, based on legal advice, which would require a provision as at the signing
date of these accounts.
Consolidated
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2015

2014

$

$

Auditors’ remuneration
Amounts received, due and receivable, by the Auditor-General from the
Company for:
Auditing the accounts of the Company
Auditing Financial Services Licence and regulatory accounts

236,737

243,024

14,491

174,480

251,228

417,504

1,702,234

3,024,264

155,047

264,959

-

-

15,059

2,844,278

1,872,340

6,133,501

Ernst and Young, who provide external audit services on behalf of the
Tasmanian Audit Office, provided $305,585 of additional audit services to
the entity in the 2014 year. This related to 2014 regulatory information
notices, including amounts paid to Ernst and Young’s subcontractors.

26

Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel of the Company during the year were:
Mr G. Willis (Chairman, non-executive director)
Ms C. Demarte PSM (non-executive director)
Mrs Y. Rundle (non-executive director) (commenced 01/01/15)
Mr M. Vertigan AC (non-executive director) (retired 30/11/14)
Mr M. Wallace (non-executive director) (resigned 30/11/14)
Mrs R. Kardos (Chief Executive Officer) (commenced as a director 26/11/14)
Ms M. Brooks (Manager People and Performance)
Ms N. Dixon-Flint (Group Manager Finance) (resigned 14/11/14)
Mr K. Ingham (Group Manager Commercial Services)
Mr T. Pearson (General Manager Billing and Systems)
Mrs C. Pillans (Company Secretary/Group Manager Business Services)
Mr G. Russell (General Manager Customer Operations)
Ms M. Lukianenko (Chief Information Officer ) (commenced 15/06/15)
The aggregate compensation of the key management personnel of the
Company is set out below:
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

The short-term employee benefits include short-term incentive payments in 2014. There were no short-term incentive
payments in 2015.
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Director remuneration
The following table discloses the remuneration details for each person that acted as a non-executive director during
the current financial year and the remuneration details in bands for the previous financial year:
2015
Director

Directors’
Fees
$

Committee
Fees
$

Superannuation1
$

Other2
$

Total 2015
$

Mr G. Willis – Chairman

76,895

6,414

Ms C. Demarte PSM

42,370

8,395

7,371

900

91,580

4,049

2,150

56,964

Mrs Y. Rundle – commenced 1/01/15

18,255

3,525

2,069

600

24,449

Mr M. Vertigan AC – retired 30/11/14

21,261

4,156

2,026

500

27,943

Mr M. Wallace – resigned 30/11/14

21,260

4,885

2,026

500

28,671

Total

180,041

27,375

17,541

4,650

229,607

Superannuation means the contribution to the superannuation fund of the individual.
Other includes travel and other expenses.

1

2

2014
Band (total payments)
$

Number of
Directors

Directors’
Fees
$

Committee
Fees
$

Superannuation1
$

Other2
$

Total 2014
$

> 50,000

5

313,021

38,750

28,954

15,250

395,975

<= 50,000

1

32,331

4,747

2,991

0

40,069

Total

6

345,352

43,497

31,945

15,250

436,044
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Key management personnel compensation (continued)
Executive remuneration
The following table discloses the remuneration details for each person who acted as a senior executive during the
current financial year and in bands for the previous financial year.
2015

Executive
Remuneration

Salary
$

Short term
incentive
payments2
$

1

Termination
benefits3
$

Superannuation4
$

Other
benefits5
$

Other nonmonetary
benefits6
$

Total 2015
$

Mrs R. Kardos

319,980

0

0

30,403

0

16,781

367,164

Ms M. Brooks

173,661

0

0

16,547

0

8,380

198,589

76,272

0

15,059

7,268

0

-28,418

70,181

Mr K. Ingham

193,330

0

0

18,377

0

13,693

225,400

Mr T. Pearson

246,685

0

0

23,611

0

518

270,814

Mr G. Russell

246,781

0

0

23,515

0

18,123

288,419

Mrs C. Pillans

177,425

0

0

16,965

0

16,794

211,183

9,424

0

0

820

0

739

10,983

1,443,558

0

15,059

137,506

0

46,610

1,642,733

Mrs N. Dixon-Flint

Ms M. Lukianenko
Total

Note: Vehicles are included in Salaries as they are optional and form part of the Total Employment Package.
Salary includes all forms of consideration paid and payable for services rendered, compensated absences during the period and salary
sacrifice amounts.
1

Short term incentive payments are non-recurrent payments which depend on achieving specified performance goals within specified
timeframes.
2

Termination benefits include all forms of benefits paid or accrued as a consequence of termination.

3

Superannuation means the contribution to the superannuation fund of the individual.

4

Other benefits includes all other forms of employment allowances (excludes reimbursements such as travel, accommodation or meals),
payments in lieu of leave, and any other compensation paid and payable.
5

Other non-monetary benefits include annual and long service leave movements.

6

2014

69

Band
$

Number of
employees

Base salaries
$

Short term
incentive
payments
$

Superannuation
$

Termination
benefits
$

Total 2014
$

>1,050,000

1

506,815

101,114

60,343

1,344,928

2,013,200

900,001 – 1,050,000

1

382,852

64,856

25,000

520,517

993,225

600,001 – 750,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

450,001 – 600,000

3

731,075

136,604

79,183

753,099

1,699,961

300,001 – 450,000

2

366,905

72,029

38,321

225,734

702,989

150,001 – 300,000

1

151,411

-

20,314

-

171,725

<= 150,000

1

106,504

-

9,852

-

116,357

Total

9

2,245,562

374,603

233,014

2,844,278

5,697,457
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Key management personnel compensation (continued)
Remuneration Principles
Non-Executive Directors
Non-executive directors are appointed by the Treasurer and Portfolio Minister. Each instrument of appointment is for
a maximum period of three years and prescribes the relevant remuneration provisions. Directors can be reappointed.
The level of fees paid to the non-executive directors is administered by the Department of Premier and Cabinet, as is
additional fees paid in respect of their work on Board committees.
Superannuation is paid at the appropriate rate as prescribed by superannuation guarantee legislation. No other
leave, termination or retirement benefits are accrued or paid to directors. Directors are entitled to reimbursement of
reasonable expenses incurred while attending to Board business. Non-executive Directors’ remuneration is reviewed
periodically with increase subject to approval by the Treasurer and Portfolio Minister.
Executive remuneration
Remuneration levels for key management personnel are set in accordance with the Director and Executive
Remuneration Guidelines, dated December 2014. Under these Guidelines, remuneration bands for Chief Executive
Officers (CEO) are determined by the Government Business Executive Remuneration Panel and reflect the principles
outlined in the Guidelines broadly and align with State Service Heads of Agency. Positioning within the bands depends
on the complexity and size of the business and the environment in which the business operates. Remuneration for
other senior executives is set with reference to the CEO’s salary.
The CEO is appointed by the Board. The Board consults with the Government Business Executive Remuneration
Advisory Panel when determining the CEO’s remuneration package.
The employment terms and conditions of senior executives are contained in individual employment contracts and
prescribe the total remuneration, superannuation, annual and long service leave, and salary sacrifice provisions.
The performance of each senior executive, including the CEO, is reviewed annually which includes a review of their
remuneration package. The terms of employment of each senior executive, including the CEO, contain a termination
clause that requires the senior executives or the Board to provide a minimum notice period of up to 3 months for
senior executives and 6 months for the CEO prior to the termination of the contract. Whilst not automatic, contracts
can be extended.
Aurora Energy’s approach to executive remuneration supports the ability to attract, retain and motivate competent
and experienced executive management personnel, while aligning with Aurora Energy’s capacity to be a stand-alone
electricity retailer in a competitive market.
Aurora Energy uses the Mercer CED Job Evaluation methodology to determine the classification band for all positions
organisation-wide. In determining the classification of each role and the appropriate salary band, a number of factors
are considered. These are:
•
•
•

Knowledge and expertise required to competently perform the role;
The level and type of judgement required; and
The type and level of accountability.

Aurora Energy’s target policy position for Key Management Personnel and Senior Management positions is the median
of the Mercer Tasmanian General Market.
Salary positioning is determined by the skills and experience the individual brings to the role, market factors (eg
scarcity of particular skills in the market), performance in role and Aurora Energy’s ability to fund remuneration
increases year on year.
Aurora Energy is compliant with the Director and Executive Remuneration Guidelines, dated December 2014, as at the
date of this report.
Short term incentive payments
Aurora Energy does not currently offer performance based payments. In the event that a program is implemented, the
requirements outlined in the Guidelines will be adopted.
Termination Benefits
Termination payments during the current year included Mrs N Dixon-Flint who resigned, effective 14 November 2014
and was paid $15,059 representing the balance of her accrued annual leave.
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Consolidated entity
Ownership Interest

Name of entity

Country of incorporation

2015
%

2014
%

Parent entity
Aurora Energy Pty Ltd

Australia

Subsidiaries
EziKey Group Pty Ltd

Australia

-

100

Auroracom Pty Ltd

Australia

-

100

The ownership interests in all the subsidiaries transferred to TasNetworks on 1 July 2014.
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Related party disclosures
(a) Equity interests in related parties
Equity interests in subsidiaries
Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in subsidiaries are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.
(b) Key management personnel compensation
Details of key management personnel compensation are disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.
(c) Transactions with key management personnel
All transactions with key management personnel, including the supply of electricity for domestic purposes and to
key management personnel in related entities, were conducted on an arm’s length basis in the normal course of
business and on commercial terms and conditions.
(d) Controlling entity
The Crown (Tasmanian government) is the ultimate parent entity of Aurora Energy Pty Ltd.
The Company retails electricity and undertakes certain other transactions with government entities on an arm’s
length basis in the normal course of business and on commercial terms and conditions.
The Company purchased electricity transmission services, distribution services, telecommunications, information
technology and various transitional services from TasNetworks. The Company purchases electricity derivatives from
Hydro Tasmania.
The Company supplied electrical services to TasNetworks and Hydro Tasmania, and supplied these services to
Transend Networks until 1 July 2014.
As part of the electricity industry reform process, certain costs in relation to preparation for the merger of Transend
Networks and Aurora Energy’s Distribution and Telecommunications Business on 1 July 2014 were incurred in the
2013-14 year by either Transend Networks or by Aurora Energy.
All transactions with Transend Networks, TasNetworks and Hydro Tasmania were on an arm’s length basis in the
normal course of business and on commercial terms and conditions.
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2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Notes to the cash flow statement
(a)

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents (note 1(n))
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on
hand, in banks, 11 am cash and short-term security deposits net of
any outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting
period as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the
related items in the statement of financial position as follows:
Cash
Bank overdraft*
11 am cash
Security Deposits

1,233

669

-

(12,770)

36,112

44,000

-

10

37,345

31,909

480,000

1,162,000

(156,000)

(799,322)

324,000

362,678

30,000

30,000

1,000

1,000

-

-

1,000

1,000

65,000

65,000

(24,000)

(52,257)

41,000

12,743

1,000

4,000

* Relates to payments made from the operating bank account on 30
June 2014. On 1 July 2014 funds were transferred from the 11 am
cash investment account prior to processing of these payments by
the bank.
(b)

Financing facilities
The Company has access to finance facilities at 30 June as indicated
below.
Master Loan Facility Agreement
Facility Limit (including guarantees)
Less used/committed
Balance
Committed Intra Day Credit Accommodation Facility
Facility Limit
Bank overdraft
Facility Limit
Less used/committed
Balance
Bank guarantee
Facility Limit
Less used/committed
Balance
Corporate Mastercard
Facility Limit
Less used/committed

(19)

(174)

Balance

981

3,826
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2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)
(c)

Reconciliation of profit for the period to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating profit after income tax equivalents
Depreciation, amortisation & decommissioning costs
Loss on disposal of non-current assets
Fair value through profit or loss of financial instruments

63,991

7,247

102,344

(12)

(91)

(1,137)

10,022

837

(1,410)

Decrease in accrued interest/market traded receivables

(148)

(18)

Decrease in other assets

(583)

(2,359)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(6,620)

6,488

Decrease in trade and other receivables

39,433

55,137

-

281

Increase in deferred and current taxes

(19,435)

(28,790)

Decrease in trade and other payables

(13,047)

(37,706)

(107)

1,694

(11,550)

(2,117)

1

96

26,366

167,562

50,212

232,319

Impairment of non-current assets

Increase in accrued interest payable

(Decrease)/increase in employee provisions
Decrease in other liabilities
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities

30

31,487

Share capital
Issued and paid-up capital
112,700,004 ordinary shares, fully paid

2015
No.
Authorised shares, shares have no par value

$’000

500,000,000

Movements in ordinary share capital
Balance at beginning of year
Movements - return in capital
Balance at end of year
Aurora Energy Pty Ltd transferred non-Retail related net assets to
TasNetworks, as set out in note 1, Basis of preparation. The return of
share capital to the State is equivalent to the net assets transferred
less the transfer of other equity items.
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112,700,004

232,319

-

(182,107)

112,700,004

50,212
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2015

2014

$’000

$’000

Financial instruments
(a)

Capital risk management
The Company’s objective is to have an appropriate capital structure
that ensures financial flexibility and fiscal discipline and therefore
ongoing viability to continue to provide returns for shareholders.
To 30 June 2014, the capital structure was maintained through
the monitoring of key financial ratios that support the continued
management of the objective to maintain a target capital structure
of 60 per cent debt and 40 per cent equity. On 1 July 2014 all
debt was transferred to TasNetworks as set out in note 1, Basis of
preparation.
The debt to total capital ratios were as follows:
Debt (i)
Year-end Equity (ii)

-

762,570

83,326

563,016

0%

58%

Total debt to total capital ratio (iii)
(i) Debt is defined as long and short term borrowings
(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves
(iii) Total capital is defined as debt plus equity
(b)

Categories of financial instruments
Carrying
Amount

Carrying
Amount

Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents

37,345

44,679

- Bank term deposit

20,000

-

- Trade and other receivables

49,798

71,704

-

-

117,400

81,028

- Market traded receivables
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
- Trade and other payables and bank overdraft
- Customer security deposits

-

14,500

- Borrowings

-

762,570

10,376

(51,029)

-

(8,830)

Derivative instruments
- Electricity swaps, futures and options – note 32(g)(i)
- Interest rate swaps – note 32(g)(ii)
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Financial instruments (continued)
(c)

Financial risk management
The Company’s Treasury function coordinates access to financial markets, and manages the interest rate risks
relating to the operations of the Company. Risk management in respect of energy commodity exposures is
managed under board approved Energy Risk Management (ERM) principles. Treasury and ERM operate under
policies approved by the Board.
The Company’s activities exposed it primarily to the financial risks of changes in energy consumption, price
and, in 2014, interest rates. The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure to these risks, including:
•
•

(d)

electricity swaps, futures and caps to hedge the energy consumption and price risk arising on purchases
and sales of electricity to customers; and
interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates.

Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class
of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in notes 1(p), 1(q), 1(r) to the financial
statements.

(e)

Credit risk management
Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counterparties failed to
meet their contractual obligations. The Company measures credit risk as the positive revaluation of financial
instruments plus the potential credit exposure and an amount for settlement risk.
Credit risk associated with receivables is described in note 6.
A Board approved Counterparty Credit Risk Framework establishes credit limits for parties depending on
their credit rating. The Company also uses ISDA agreements with derivative counterparties in order to limit
exposure to credit risk through the netting of amounts receivable from and amounts payable to individual
counterparties. The Framework is overseen by the Company’s Energy Risk and Compliance Committee
and Treasury Committee with delegations set by Board approved policies. The Company’s overall strategy
towards credit risk remained unchanged from 2010 however a revised counterparty credit policy and
associated documentation was put in place for 1 July 2014 following the transfer of the Distribution and
Telecommunications business to TasNetworks.
The majority of the Company’s counterparty credit risk is to Australian based banks, financial institutions and
electricity generators. At balance date, the only significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty
is to Hydro Tasmania as the dominant generator in Tasmania and the Westpac Bank, Commonwealth Bank,
ANZ Bank and Tascorp for bank deposits. There is no material concentration risk in retail customers.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses,
represents the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date. In respect to those financial
assets and the credit risk embedded within them, the Company holds no significant collateral as security and
there are no other significant credit enhancements in respect of these assets.
The Company accepts guarantees from Australian financial institutions on behalf of major customer and
supply contracts as collateral in respect of the financial assets/receivables.

(f)

Liquidity risk management
Prudent liquidity management involves maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions. To help counter this risk, the Company has adequate stand-by facilities and other funding
arrangements in place as disclosed in note 29(b) and only uses financial instruments that are highly tradable.
The Company also continuously monitors forecast and actual cash flows and matches the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.
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Financial instruments (continued)
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial assets and liabilities
and expected maturity of derivative instruments. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay its financial liabilities
and receive its financial assets and is expected to settle its derivative instruments. The tables include both
principal and interest cash flows.

2015

Weighted
average effective
interest rate

1 year or less

1 to 2 years

2 to 5 years

Over 5 years

%

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Bank term deposits
Electricity derivatives

1.90

37,345

-

-

-

-

49,798

-

-

-

2.88

20,000

-

-

-

-

2,676

11,170

3,000

-

109,819

11,170

3,000

-

Financial liabilities

-

Trade and other payables

-

117,400

-

-

-

Electricity derivatives

-

5,684

429

44

-

123,084

429

44

-

2014

Weighted
average effective
interest rate

1 year or less

1 to 2 years

2 to 5 years

Over 5 years

%

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Financial assets
2.63

44,679

-

-

-

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

-

71,704

-

-

-

Electricity derivatives

-

7

6,494

76

-

116,390

6,494

76

-

Trade and other payables

81,028

-

-

-

Customer security deposits

14,500

-

-

-

Financial liabilities

Borrowings – fixed rate

5.90

77,902

59,973

522,046

Borrowings – floating rate

3.33

107,188

42,804

51,970

-

Interest rate swaps

4.49

2,727

3,547

3,873

-

-

26,631

13,259

20,312

-

309,976

119,583

598,201

-

Electricity derivatives
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Financial instruments (continued)
(g)

Market risk management
(i) Price risk management
The Company is exposed to commodity price risk from electricity associated with the purchase and/or sale of
electricity. To manage its commodity price risks in respect to electricity, the Company enters into electricity
derivatives, including caps and swaps.
The key elements of the Company’s strategy include:
• Energy trading risks being actively managed and monitored against Board approved limits. These limits
cover relative and absolute trading limits;
• Incorporating sufficient margin within contestable retail customer contract pricing to adequately cover
costs and generate the required return for risk; and
• Ensuring alignment between key terms of customer sales and associated hedge contracts.
The Company’s overall strategy provides for the utilisation of market exposure as per limits set out in the
Board approved Energy Risk Policy.
The following tables detail the remaining terms of energy derivatives contracts outstanding as at reporting
date and their fair values.

2015

1 year or
less
$’000

1 to 2
years
$’000

2 to 5
years
$’000

Over 5
years
$’000

Total
$’000

Assets
Derivatives designated hedge in a cash flow relationship

254

7,400

-

-

7,654

Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship

2,229

3,656

2,607

-

8,492

172

58

-

-

230

2,655

11,114

2,607

-

16,376

Derivatives designated hedge in a cash flow relationship

(5,325)

(430)

-

-

(5,755)

Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship

-

-

-

-

-

(243)

(2)

-

-

(245)

(5,568)

(432)

-

-

(6,000)

(2,913)

13,289

-

-

10,376

Derivatives not in designated hedge relationship
Liabilities

Derivatives not in designated hedge relationship
Total asset/(liability)
2014

1 year or
less
$’000

1 to 2
years
$’000

2 to 5
years
$’000

Over 5
years
$’000

Total
$’000

Assets
Derivatives designated hedge in a cash flow relationship

8

6,305

-

-

6,313

Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship

-

-

-

-

-

Derivatives not in designated hedge relationship

-

-

72

-

72

8

6,305

72

-

6,385

Derivatives designated hedge in a cash flow relationship

(17,152)

(3,239)

(1,029)

-

(21,420)

Derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship

(8,128)

(9,142)

(17,596)

-

(34,866)

Liabilities

Derivatives not in designated hedge relationship
Total asset/(liability)

77

(863)

(262)

(1)

-

(1,126)

(26,143)

(12,643)

(18,626)

-

(57,412)

(26,135)

(6,338)

(18,554)

-

(51,027)
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Financial instruments (continued)
Price sensitivity
The following table summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the relevant forward prices for
electricity on the Company’s post tax profit for the year and on other components of equity. The sensitivity
analysis is calculated based on a calculation of the region’s volatility of price as observed over the past year,
to provide an indicator of likely potential variation to profit and equity of the company. A five dollar per
megawatt hour rate variation, up and down, has been used in the analysis for 30 June 2015. Actual results
may differ dependent on future market conditions. All variables other than the relevant primary risk variable
identified are held constant in the analysis.
Impact on post
tax profit of the
Company

Post tax impact
on equity of the
Company

+/(-) ($‘000)

+/(-) ($‘000)

568/(551)

6,664/(6,664)

1,408/(588)

32,843/(13,161)

2015
Electricity forward price
2014
Electricity forward price

Profit for the year would increase/decrease as a result of electricity derivatives which do not qualify for cash
flow hedge accounting under AASB 139. Equity would increase/decrease as a result of electricity derivatives
which do qualify for cash flow hedge accounting under AASB 139.
(ii) Interest rate risk management
In 2014, the Company was exposed to interest rate risk as it borrowed funds at both fixed and floating interest
rates. The risk was managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings,
by entering into forward start borrowing agreements and by the use of interest rate swap contracts.
The Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section to this note.
Interest rate swaps
The Company is able to enter into interest rate swap contracts to manage the interest rate risk of the debt
portfolio. Interest rate swap transactions allow the Company to swap floating rate exposure to fixed rate
exposure and vice versa.
As at 30 June 2015 the Company had no interest rate swaps.
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Financial instruments (continued)
The following table details the notional principal amounts, remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts
outstanding as at reporting date and the fair values.
Average contracted
fixed interest rate

Outstanding floating for fixed contracts

2015
%

Notional Principal
amount

2014
%

2015
$’000

Fair value

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Less than 1 year

-

3.8141

-

55,000

-

(12)

1 to 2 years

-

4.6038

-

40,000

-

(1,043)

2 to 5 years

-

4.6543

-

190,000

-

(7,775)

5 years +

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

285,000

-

(8,830)

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the relevant interest rates on the
Company’s post-tax profit for the year and on other components of equity. A 100 basis point increase or 50
basis point decrease (2014: 100 basis point increase or 50 basis point decrease) represents Aurora Energy’s
assessment of the possible change in interest rates.
Impact on post tax
profit of the Group

Post tax impact
on equity of the
Group

+100bp/(-50bp)
($‘000)

+100bp/(-50bp)  
($‘000)

-/-

-/-

204/(408)

3,899/(2,014)

2015
Interest rates
2014
Interest rates

Post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate borrowings. However, all variable rate borrowings (excluding variable short
term borrowings) have been effectively hedged, to change the exposure to a fixed rate. Other components
of equity would increase/decrease as a result of the interest rate swap contracts which qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting under AASB 139.
(h)

Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements, except for
the borrowings from Tascorp in 2014, approximate their fair values.
Tascorp loans in 2014 were not carried at their fair values as it was expected to repay the carrying amount
fully by holding them to maturity.
Fixed rate loans, floating rate notes and overnight borrowings were valued at current risk adjusted market
rates.
The fair value of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted prices or where such prices are not
available use is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.
Derivative transactions are only used for the purpose of managing financial exposures that arise from
underlying business positions. Therefore fair values should not be assessed in isolation. The overall impact
should take account of the underlying exposures being hedged.
Tasmanian Electricity Derivative Contracts
The company has in place hedge arrangements for a portion of its Tasmanian market contracts customers.
Hedges take the form of electricity swap agreements. The economic effect of these arrangements is to
transfer to the counterparties some of the variable price risk and to fix the cost of electricity to the Company
in line with the revenue streams that are contracted for with customers.
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Financial instruments (continued)
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.
•
•
•

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market date (unobservable inputs).

30 June 2015

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

- Electricity swap, futures and options – note 31(g)(i)

-

10,376

-

10,376

- Interest rate swaps – note 31(g)(ii)

-

-

-

-

Total

-

10,376

-

10,376

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

- Electricity swap, futures and options – note 31(g)(i)

-

(51,027)

-

(51,027)

- Interest rate swaps – note 31(g)(ii)

-

(8,830)

-

(8,830)

Total

-

(59,857)

-

(59,857)

Derivative instruments

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in
the period.
30 June 2014
Derivative instruments

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in the period.
Significant assumptions used in determining fair value of financial assets and liabilities.
The financial statements include electricity swaps and customer contracts which are measured at fair value.
Their fair values are determined using valuation techniques based on the calculation of the present value of
expected future cash flows. Inputs to these valuation techniques include some assumptions relating to the
electricity forward prices in Tasmania that are supportable by regulated market prices and forecast of future
load demand.
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Fair value measurement
The following tables provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2015:
Assets measured at fair value

Date of
valuation

Total
$’000

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
$’000

Significant
observable
Inputs
(Level 2)
$’000

Significant
unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)
$’000

Assets measured at fair value
Derivative financial assets
Electricity derivatives

30 June 15

16,376

-

16,376

-

30 June 15

3,311

-

-

3,311

30 June 15

6,000

-

6,000

-

Revalued property, plant and equipment
PayGuard devices
There have been no transfers between Level 1,
2 and 3 in the period
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financial liabilities
Electricity derivatives
There have been no transfers between Level 1,
2 and 3 in the period

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2014:
Assets measured at fair value

Date of
valuation

Total
$’000

Quoted
prices in
active
markets
(Level 1)
$’000

Significant
observable
Inputs
(Level 2)
$’000

Significant
unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)
$’000

Assets measured at fair value
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate swaps

30 June 14

-

-

-

-

Electricity derivatives

30 June 14

6,385

-

6,385

-

Revalued property, plant and equipment

3,311

Distribution grid

30 June 14

1,344,714

-

-

1,344,714

Land and buildings

30 June 14

38,628

-

38,628

-

Interest rate swaps

30 June 14

8,830

-

8,830

-

Electricity derivatives

30 June 14

57,412

-

57,412

-

Borrowings – fixed rates

30 June 14

607,802

-

607,802

-

Borrowings – variable rates

30 June 14

197,138

-

197,138

-

There have been no transfers between Level 1,
2 and 3 in the period
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financial liabilities

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed
Interest bearing borrowings

There have been no transfers between Level 1,
2 and 3 in the period
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
(i)

Assessment of impairment of non-financial assets

The Company considers annually whether such assets have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 1(l). An impairment of computer software no longer to be used by the business was recorded, see
note 11.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of the following key assumptions:
•
•
		
•

forecast electricity pool outcomes and regulated revenues;
the level of customer churn to competitors with the introduction of full retail contestability from 1 July 2014;
and
discount rates.

Where an indicator of impairment exists, Aurora Energy makes a formal estimate of the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit. The whole of Aurora Energy is one cash generating unit.
A five year Corporate Plan for Aurora Energy has been approved by the Board. The plan reflects up-to-date information
and the projections represent management’s best estimate of future financial performance. Based on the future
projections of Aurora Energy, the Board has determined that no indicators of impairment exist and, accordingly, no
formal estimate of the recoverable amount has been performed.
(ii)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, certain types of electricity
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
(iii)

RBF liability

The Retirement Benefits Fund defined benefits provision detailed in note 19 has been assessed by the State Actuary and
various actuarial assumptions have been applied to arrive at the carrying value reported.
(iv)

Unbilled revenue

Unbilled electricity sales are an estimate of the value of electricity units supplied between the date of the last meter
reading and the year-end. The estimate of the units supplied is based on the customer historic usage profile adjusted to
reflect the actual wholesale electricity purchases and the unit price used reflects the relevant tariff prices.
(v)

Unbilled use of system expense

Unbilled use of system charges are an estimate of the system cost of delivering electricity to the customer between the
date of the last meter reading and year end. The estimate is based on the same meter data and customer profiles as
used in the unbilled revenue estimates but using the appropriate use of system tariffs.
(vi)

Recovery of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences as Aurora Energy considers that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise those temporary differences.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
(vii)

Customer care and billing system

A customer care and billing system was commissioned in February 2011 to replace an existing system which was no
longer supported by the vendor and was unable to effectively support National Electricity Market requirements. At
this time, the useful life of the asset was assessed to be 12 years. Aurora Energy receives an allowance per customer
through the independent retail price regulation process. The book value of the customer care and billing system at 30
June 2013 was $17.226M. It was being depreciated over a useful remaining life of 3 years to 30 June 2015, the date
reasonably expected as the end to Aurora Energy’s retail services functions proposed under reform process with the sale
of Aurora Energy’s retail book. Following the September 2013 announcement of the abandonment of a process to sell
Aurora Energy’s retail customer base and the continuing on of Aurora Energy as a Retailer, the estimated useful life was
reassessed to 8 years from 1 July 2013 (6 years from 30 June 2015).
Aurora Energy will continue to assess the effective useful life in accordance with note 1(e).
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Parent entity information
Information relating to Aurora Energy Pty Ltd
2014
$’000
Current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities

255,280
1,886,229
329,804

Total liabilities

1,319,424

Issued capital

232,319

Retained earnings

150,052

Asset revaluation reserve

201,414

Cash flow hedge reserve

(16,979)

Total shareholders’ equity

566,805

Total revenue including tax benefit of the parent entity

1,193,079

Total expenses including tax expense of the parent entity

1,129,092

Profit after tax of the parent entity

63,987

Total comprehensive income of the parent entity

65,892

Contingent liabilities:
Contingent liabilities of the parent entity are set out in note 24, and are the same as for the
consolidated entity.
Property, plant and equipment commitments:
Property, plant and equipment
Not longer than 1 year

1,732

Longer than 1 year and up to 5 years

1,732

Longer than 5 years

3,464
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Subsequent events
At the time of signing these financial statements there have been no material subsequent events.
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Accounts/connections/general
Residential
1300 13 2003
Business					1300 13 2045
Switchboard					1300 13 2007
Website					www.auroraenergy.com.au
TasNetworks

1300 13 7008

